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GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high investment risk
may be attached. In particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability nor any
obligation to forecast future profitability. Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature of
companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries in which the companies operate. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to
invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean

that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may
be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no

assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is publication on the Internet
website operated by the Stock Exchange. Listed companies are not generally required
to issue paid announcements in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly, prospective
investors should note that they need to have access to the GEM website in order

to obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed companies.
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36.com holdings limited

The first year of the new millennium proved to be very
dramatic for 36.com holdings limited (“36.com”or “the
Company”). Financially, our annual revenue increased by 8
times to approximately HK$24.l million for the year
ended 31 March 2001. Loss attributable to shareholders
was approximately HK$78.8 million, largely due to startup
investment in hardware, content development and
marketing. Strategically, we started a very popular website
in March 2000, went public in July 2000 and saw our share
price plummeted as part of the global “tech” stock
meltdown.

The Board of Directors and management at 36.com are
committed to creating shareholder value. The only way to
do that is to build a sustainable and competitive business.
As a media company, we have always intended to
distribute our content in different formats. We have
accelerated our plan when we launched the CUP weekly
magazine in May 2001.The Board of Directors consider
the launch of "CUP" magazine is in line with the Group's
revenue model and use of proceeds as stated in the
prospectus of the Company dated 18 July 2000. CUP is a
response to two emerging market opportunities.

I. Many existing weekly magazines follow a tabloid-like
approach. Market preference is often used as an excuse
for making up stories with excessive sensationalism.
CUP on the other hand, excels in content that is timely,
trustworthy and a pleasure to read. We believe
“sensationalism’ is not the only road to success.

2. We leverage the strength of two different
formats — a real-time, interactive and informative
website and an elegant, in-depth and popular weekly
magazine — to deliver a unique and powerful
proposition to both our advertisers and readers.

The "CUP" magazine was launched on 16 May 2001 with a
print-run of 88,000. It was sold at all newsstands in Hong
Kong at HK$20 per copy, the highest price in its category.
The weekly magazine received strong support from many
brand-name advertisers, including Cheung Kong, Hutchison,
Cathay Pacific, PCCW, Wharf, Hang Seng Bank, and Rado.
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36.com holdings limited

On the other hand, we have also built a very strong e-
business. www.36.com is the only high-traffic website in
Hong Kong targeted at upper middle class users. Alexa
Research, which tracks business usage of the internet,
ranked us the most visited website in Hong Kong. Nielsen
rated us the second most “sticky” website in Hong Kong.
Advertisers like Hong Kong Bank and MPF ran extensive
marketing campaigns on the website to reach its 0.8
million unique visitors per month. We have one of the
largest online shopping malls in Hong Kong, with 350
merchants in over 20 product categories. Each merchant
pays us a one-off set-up fee, a monthly maintenance and
marketing fee, and a handling charge for each transaction.
During shopping seasons, the website registered over
3,000 transactions per month.

The synergies between the print and the web formats give
us a strong edge over our competition. Our cost structure
is very competitive since the website and the magazine
share the same editorial and creative talent pool. Cross-
selling opportunities help maximize revenue derived from
each advertiser. For example, we ran an exclusive web-
plus-magazine campaign for IBM in May 2001.

Finally, | would like to thank 36.com’s directors, executives
and all our staff for their commitment, hard work and
creativity throughout last year We started our second
financial year as a public company with competitive
products, top-notch talents and HK$78 million in cash. |
am confident that 36.com’s team will be a winning one in
the coming year.

Dr. Saimond Ip
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2001
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Our e-businesses
Superior value to customers

e -l
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Since the launch of the flagship website www.36.com, the Company
oap ! | - concentrated its effort on developing three tangible revenue sources:
| advertising, online shops, and e-business solutions. Our superior products and
services attracted many fee-paying customers and put us in a very strong
market position. While stock market sentiment has been volatile at times, we
experienced sustained interest from potential advertisers, merchants and
internet users. In fact, industry consolidation in recent months led to a
somewhat more favourable competitive environment and better profit margin.

. Advertising platform
Reaching 0.8 million middle class users

www.36.com remains one of the most comprehensive websites in Hong
Kong. We added many new vertical portals last year and continued to
strengthen existing ones. The website currently consists of 23 different
vertical portals in 3 different areas. Firstly, there are |3 content portals.
Finance, news, entertainment, and consumer are the four anchor portals
and continue to be the most popular. Our finance portal’s real-time stock
market commentary, in particular, draws a substantial following. The other
content portals include automotive, gourmet, IT & networking, forum,
healthcare, fortune-telling, religion, youth, and search engine. Secondly,
there are 5 services portals: parenting, education, career, real estate, and
travel. We added these portals last year to meet the needs of advertisers
in these sectors. Thirdly, there are 5 online applications: community,
animated e-card, discussion forum, chat room, and free email. 36.com
added several hundred e-cards last year, making it the largest Chinese
animated e-card site.

www.36.com is the only high-traffic website in Hong Kong targeted at
upper middle class users. Alexa Research, which tracks business usage
of the internet, ranked us the most visited website in Hong Kong. The
website attracts over 750,000 unique visitors per month, reaching
40% of Hong Kong's internet population. Nielsen rated us the second
most “sticky” website in Hong Kong, with average viewing time of
approximately 30 minutes. Most of our registered members are
middle class professionals. Many brand-name advertisers ran
successful marketing campaigns on www.36.com to reach its user

base. Key clients include Hongkong Bank, Hasbro and Asia Pay.
T s I—l .
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Building an online brand for Hongkong Bank. When
Hongkong Bank launched its internet banking service
several months ago, it chose www.36.com as one of
its online marketing partners. The objective of the
campaign was to extend its phenomenal brand in
banking and finance to the online world. A number
of prominent horizontal and vertical banners were
placed in the auto-refresh window of our finance
portal. This auto-refresh window is typically left
“always-on” by many serious stock investors during
trading hours. The campaign helped Hongkong Bank
create instant brand awareness among this elite
group of investors.

Creating a Monopoly following. Hasbro is a
worldwide leader in children’s entertainment
products and services. We worked with Hasbro last
year to develop an innovative campaign to enhance
local sales of its legendary Monopoly game. We
created a major buzz around a worldwide Monopoly
Tournament. We designed a creative mini website for
the event and published successive articles covering
the tournament. 36.com also ran a number of online
polls, forums and chat rooms. The programme was a
major success. Nearly one thousand copies of the

game were sold over the internet.

Launching a new payment service. Asia Pay (HK) Ltd
launched a new payment and bill presentment
service called “PayDollar” earlier this year. It chose
36.com as its key online marketing platform and ran

an extensive launch campaign. We placed prominent
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full-page ad on our front page, pop-up ad on our
shopping channels, and banner ads throughout our site.
We published many advertorial articles and sent out
electronic newsletters to more than 300,000 registered
members.

Online shops
Effective, no-hassle solutions

We currently operate one of Hong Kong's largest online
shopping malls. Our shopping mall has three different
sections: discount store, group purchasing site and
general shopping directory. During shopping seasons, the
website registered over 3,000 transactions per month.
Each transaction has an average value of over HK$ 1,000.

36.com offers a cost-effective, no-hassle online shopping
solution to medium-sized merchants. We design,
develop, host, and maintain online shopping sites. We
update product catalogues for merchants on a regular
basis. We create and manage both online and offline
payment solutions. We take orders and provide
customer support via phone, fax and email. We regularly
work with merchants to create online and offline
campaigns to promote their online shops. All these
services are offered at a fraction of the cost of a full-
time e-commerce staff. This compelling proposition
attracted 350 merchants in 20 different product
categories. Key merchants include Gameson Trading, BSP
and OK |8.com.
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Advanced orders for Dreamcast games. Gameson
Trading is a leading game specialist in Hong Kong and a
regional distributor for Sega products. 36.com provided
a total online shopping solution to Gameson, including
designing and maintaining its online product catalogue.
Our members can place orders via phone, fax and email,
and then pick up the products at Gameson's retail
outlets. We developed a unique online sales programme
with Gameson that encouraged 36.com members to
order new Dreamcast games and accessories in
advance. This proved to be extremely popular, with over
one thousand transactions per campaign.

Exclusive direct sales for mountain bikes. BSP is a
leading local manufacturer of mountain bikes. It generally
sells its bikes through different retail stores in Hong
Kong. We created a very user-friendly shopping site for
BSP It often uses this site as its exclusive direct sales
channel. In addition to the integrated online shopping
solution, we ran numerous marketing campaigns on
36.com to promote BSP's shopping site. A typical
campaign would include a full-page ad on either the
front page or the exit page. These campaigns would
generate around 300 transactions per week, accounting
for roughly 30% of BSP's local sales in Hong Kong.

80% of OKI18.com’s sales. OKI| [8.com has a very
entrepreneurial management team. It introduces new
snacks and drinks to Hong Kong and delivers them
directly to offices and homes. It came to 36.com to
jump-start its online presence. We created an online
shop for OKI |8.com and integrated our call center with
its delivery service within three weeks. This online shop
currently generates 80% of OKI 18.com’s monthly sales.

=
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E-business solutions
Integrating strategy, creativity and technology

36.com brings together a rare blend of core capabilities,
namely e-business strategy, creative design and
technology integration.We can rapidly deploy e-business
solutions tailored to meet real business needs. We have
a proven, reliable technology architecture that would
meet the most demanding requirements of any major
corporations in Hong Kong. Key clients include Mass
Transit Railway Corporation (MTRC) and IBM.

Creating a website for the most popular IPO. When
MTRC went public last year, 36.com advised it on its
communication strategy on the internet. We also
developed and hosted its IPO website
www.mtripo.com.hk which provided the prospectus,
handled public enquiry, and reported the allotment
result. More than 300,000 potential investors visited the
site during the IPO process.

Building a loyalty website for IBM. The new IBM Aptiva
PC has a unique feature with special buttons on the
keyboard that connect the PC directly to the IBM loyalty
site (www.digihere.com). 36.com set up, hosts, and
maintains the entire loyalty site for IBM. It includes a
membership database, an online shopping mall, a bulletin
board, and a chatroom.

The CUP magazine
The only weekly for the upper middle class

The Company launched the CUP magazine in May 2001. It
will be a very significant source of revenue for the Company
in the coming financial year. It shares the same editorial and
creative talent pool with the website and operates at a very
competitive cost base. Cross-selling opportunities between
the magazine and the website also help maximize revenue
derived from each advertiser.

|
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A unique proposition. The CUP magazine is the only
comprehensive weekly magazine targeting the upper
middle class. It is a 300 page-plus weekly with 3 key
sections: news, money, and life. CUP NEWS presents even-
handed facts on hot social issues such as the chicken flu
and the new privacy law. We have exclusive interviews
with political heavyweights like Donald Tsang and Anthony
Leung. Top-caliber commentators, including Albert Cheng,
share their insights on the latest controversies. CUP
MONEY provides a balanced, pragmatic view on stock,
fund, and real estate. We talk to business leaders like
Francis Leung as well as rising corporate stars. We profile
successful startup cases and let entrepreneurs share their
business strategies. CUP LIFE introduces readers to the
best of the best in all areas — food, wine, travel, fashion
and beauty. We give parents detailed schooling guides and
numerous useful tips. There are entertainment guides,
celebrity news, and an extensive photo gallery.

Strong initial support. The magazine was launched on
[6 May 2001, with a print-run of 88,000. It was sold at all
newsstands and convenience stores in Hong Kong at
HK$20 per copy, the highest price in its category. The
magazine also met with strong support from many brand-
name advertisers since its image and readership profile
align closely with their target consumers. Key advertisers
include Cheung Kong, Hutchison, Cathay Pacific, PCCWy,
the Dixon Group, Hang Seng Bank, Rado, Concord, IWC,
and & Joy.

Cross-media marketing. We offer a web-plus-magazine
programme for innovative advertisers and merchants. This
unique programme helps us win major accounts like IBM
as well as non-traditional clients like the Hong Kong
Baptist Hospital. IBM chose us as the exclusive sales and
marketing platform in a recent campaign to promote its
NetVista PC series. We put display ads in CUP, ran front-
page and email ads on 36.com, and took orders via phone,
fax, and email. The campaign sold over 500 PCs over the
internet. We designed a special programme to promote

Business Review

E 3 EI)

17» >

BEER - (R ATRE U ERAL
AHERGSEGHRARNRTREERN
BT e CRHMIBATII—A=ZAZAENHE
T BREZEXERN : KE  FERE
B AR EMEREHGHFIEE
MBRBELHALEBEE  BREHREW
LREENMRBN  BRKETFHRE B8R
BEH AEMFIAREDZREFNRD
BR - ARXMOPERER B2 RIWER
HHETFTEANDT  BERARBNREHE
NEARMBEZZEHK - R BIRKI
TREEARD FEXHRE - R EE
AEENMEREXR  KE  BREER
BEIENREZR  RRXBREFAHE
Bl hZNBENERET BB BB
ER BAMBEREREEREE -

BAXZF KM AETER—FZT—Fh
RA+7"BEIF] - 17880007 - K2 HEH
HRENRENEEES  SMB%20T  BF
BAFHFRERZSH—A o K E T
IS JE R % b R S A ) SR A ST - B
HERhEBEEERYEELEERNER
BEE+TOYE - FERERBERT M
2 HFE - BHEMN BEEE - BAR
17+ &Hi#E ~ Concord * IWC & Joy °

BEETSHERE BMASAENESS
kEPRE—RLATE - REBE &
ZHWEREIBBRMES A, A IBM &I
BREPMAERZTEER - IBM EER
MR —EESEAEBREE RIS
HEFEES  HEH NetVista AATIE
B o WPIALKEM) FIEES  7436.com F
HEEEEREREBESLS  WEBRS
W BELREBESIE ZEEEHE
BEMBE LB BS00%E AT o B



Business Review

E 3 EI) -

the Baptist Hospital's new cardiology unit. We ran
advertorial in CUP and sent out electronic newsletters to
36.com’s members.We used display ads in CUP and front-
page ads on 36.com to promote a seminar about heart
disease. It was a runaway success. The hospital was
expecting around 500 participants. More than 1,500
readers came to the seminar

Business outlook

36.com started our second financial year as a public
company with a very solid foundation. We are confident
that the CUP magazine's unique market position would
continue to attract more readers and advertisers. 36.com’s
compelling online shopping solutions would also continue
to gain market share. In spite of the continued volatile
stock market sentiment, we believe our integrated web-
plus-magazine approach will offer huge growth potential.

36.com holdings limited
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Cheng Albert Jinghan, aged 55, is the founder; an executive Director
and the chief icontent architect of the Group. Mr. Cheng is a popular
television and radio personality in Hong Kong. Mr. Cheng has vast
experience in publishing, broadcasting and other media related
industries. He has held many high profile media and publishing
positions including president and chief executive officer of
Paramount Publishing Group from 1991 to 1994, President of
Capital Communications Corporation from 1986 to 1991. Mr. Cheng
was voted by Time Magazine in 1997 as “one of the 25 most
influential people in new Hong Kong” and selected by Business Week
in 1998 as "one of the 50 stars of Asia”. In 1989, Mr. Cheng was
elected as Chairman of the Society of Hong Kong Publishers (now
known as the Society of Publishers in Asia). Mr. Cheng participates in
various charitable organisations and academic bodies.

Ip Saimond, aged 36, is the chairman and chief executive officer of
the Group. Dr. Ip formally joined the Group on | October 1999. Dr.
Ip has over 6 years’ experience in advising and assisting major
multinational corporations in launching e-business in greater China.
These e-businesses included an Internet portal site, a personal
finance website, a business-to-business trading exchange, an online
retailer, an IT service provider, and a broadband Internet provider. In
1995, Dr. Ip developed an innovative software programme called
"“Expression” which has won many awards in the US and Europe. Dr.
Ip worked for McKinsey & Company, a leading management
consultant company, as a co-leader of their Internet practice for 6
years. Dr. Ip received his Bachelor of Arts in information engineering
in 1987 and Doctor of Philosophy in artificial intelligence from
Cambridge University in 1992.
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Yeung Kwok Mung, aged 36, is an executive Director and the chief
operating officer of the Group. Mr. Yeung joined the Group on |
November 1999. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yeung was the
director of Strategic Planning for Coca Cola China Limited,
responsible for strategic development. Mr. Yeung also has over 6
years' experience as a management consultant with McKinsey &
Company in Hong Kong and Australia, focusing on the
telecommunications and electronics industries advising Australian,
Asian and greater China clients on market entry strategies,
e-commerce opportunities, business re-engineering and corporate
restructuring in Asia. Mr. Yeung holds a Bachelor of Science and
Master of Science in Electrical Engineering and Computer Science
from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology (MIT).

Non-executive Directors

Poon Kai Tik, aged 48, is a non-executive Director and the Group's
marketing adviser. Mr. Poon became a Director on || May 2000. Mr.
Poon is currently an assistant director of the Housing Authority
responsible for its division of information and community relations.
Mr. Poon has held many directorships in the media and advertising
industries including managing director of Capital Publicist Limited,
executive director of Saatchi and Saatchi Advertising Limited,
creative director of Leo Burnett Limited and McCann Erickson
Limited. In addition, Mr. Poon has extensive involvement in many
public and charitable organisations including the Hong Kong Aids
Foundation and the Society for the Promotion of Hospice Care. Mr.
Poon holds a Bachelor of Arts from The University of Hong Kong
and a Master of Business Administration from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong.

Huang Erwin Steve, aged 35, is a non-executive Director and the
Group's technical adviser. Mr. Huang became a Director on || May
2000. Mr. Huang is the chief technology officer and co-founder of
Magically Inc., which is an industry leader in the development of
“virtual desktop” tools such as online diary, address book and other
online personal productivity software.
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Chung Wai Yang, aged 45, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Chung
became a Director on || May 2000. Mr. Chung is the managing
director of Gubelin Watch Company Limited, a premium watch
retailer in Hong Kong. Prior to this role, Mr. Chung was executive
director of Danao International Holdings Ltd. from 1991 to 1994, a
property development firm. Before then, Mr. Chung was a director of
KPS Limited, which operated a video rental chain.

Independent non-executive Directors

Wong Richard Yue Chim, aged 49, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Wong became a Director on || May 2000. He is the
director of the School of Business and chair of Economics at The
University of Hong Kong. He is a leading figure in advancing
economic research on policy issues in Hong Kong through his work
as founding director of both the Hong Kong Centre for Economic
Research (since 1987) and the Hong Kong Institute of Economics
and Business Strategy (since 1999). He has served on numerous
public bodies and is currently a member of the Hong Kong
Government's Economic Advisory Committee (since 1992), the
University Grants Committee (since 1993), the Housing Authority
(since 1998), and the Exchange Fund Advisory Committee (since
1999).

He was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star in 1999 by the Government
of the Hong Kong for his contributions in education, housing,
industry and technology development.

Shek Abraham Lai Him, Jr aged 56, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Shek became a Director on || May 2000. Mr. Shek is
the deputy chairman, panel on transport, Legislative Council. He was
the former chief executive of the Land Development Corporation
which is tasked with improving the standard of housing and
environment in Hong Kong by undertaking, encouraging, promoting
and facilitating urban renewal. Prior to joining Land Development
Corporation, Mr. Shek held senior management positions with a
number of organizations in Hong Kong, including the Swire and CY
Tung Group and the Kowloon-Canton Railway Corporation. Mr. Shek
has been a member of the Antiquities Advisory Board since 1996, a
consulting professor at Tsing Hua University, Beijing, since 1997 and
an honourary lecturer at The University of Hong Kong since 1998.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ng Ha Long, aged 34, is the Group’s editor in chief. Mr. Ng joined
the Group on 10 April 2000. Mr. Ng had previously been the chief
editor of the Sun newspaper and deputy chief editor of Oriental
Daily News. Mr. Ng graduated from the National Chengchi
University with a Bachelor of Arts degree.

Lai Chak Fun, aged 50, is the Group's executive chief editor. Mr. Lai
formally joined the Group on |3 December 1999. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Lai was the chief editor of a magazine called “Capital
Magazine” for over nine years. Mr. Lai also cohosts a popular radio
programme on personal finance with Hong Kong Commercial
Broadcasting Co. Ltd. Mr. Lai holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences
degree from The University of Hong Kong.

Wong Kevin Che Kuen, aged 36, is the Group’s art directon
responsible for all the design work for the Group. Mr. Wong joined
the Group on | November 1999. Before joining the Group, Mr.
Wong was the art director of Paramount Publishing Group Ltd., for
nine years. Mr.Wong has extensive experience in publishing, graphic
design and media related business. Mr. Wong received his certificate
in advertising and commercial design from Caritas Bianchi College in
1984.

Tse Man Kwong, aged 43, is the Group's chief photographer. Mr. Tse
had worked as photo officer for Sudden Weekly from 1996 to 2001.
He has worked as photographer for various magazines such as
Sunday Weekly, Car, Sports, Cosmopolitan and Bazaar. Mr. Tse joined
the Group on | March 2001.

Chau Shing Chung, aged 44, is the Group's production director. Mr,
Chau joined the Group on 19 February 2000. Mr. Chau has more
than 25 years of experience in publication. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Chau has worked as production director in 3C Broadcast
Ltd.
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Kong Chi Keung, aged 40, is the Group’s circulation director. Mr,
Kong joined the Group on | March 2001. Mr. Kong has extensive
experience in circulation and distribution of publications. Mr. Kong
has previously worked for the Paramount Publishing Group Limited,
Hong Kong Economic Times, Apple Daily and Next Magazine.

Lam Stephen Tai Wai, aged 34, is the Group’s director of software
development, responsible for implementing the websites’ core
publishing system. Mr. Lam joined the Group on 25 October 1999,
Mr. Lam was a senior consulting/deployment manager with
SINA.com, one of the most popular Chinese website operators,
where he was in charge of global deployment and consulting
activities. He joined SINA.com from Netscape Communications
Corporation (“Netscape”) where he was a senior consultant
specializing in messaging/infrastructure architectural design and
deployment for leading telecommunications and banking
corporations in North America and Asia Pacific. Prior to joining
Netscape, Mr. Lam had spent 5 years with Electronic Data Systems
(Hong Kong) Ltd. in Hong Kong bringing technical solutions to major
financial institutions and telecommunications companies. Mr. Lam
holds a Bachelor of Science in computational science and
management studies from The University of Leeds, England.

Lam Chi Fai, aged 23, is the art director of the Group’s ebusiness. Mr.
Lam joined the Group on 12 March 2001. Mr. Lam has been actively
involved in the multimedia design and web development industries
since early 93's. With over seven years of solid experience in
multimedia development and artistic design, Mr Lam has served in
management positions in several leading web development
companies including chinadotcom, Ecom Technology Limited and
PChome. In 1999, Mr. Lam won “Standard of Excellence Award”
awarded by US Macromedia. His design is associated with “creative”,
“innovative” and “impressive”.

Pun Yiu Chow, aged 45, is the Group's business director. Mr. Pun has
over 20 years experience in advertising and sales management both
in Hong Kong and internationally. Mr. Pun has worked for Asian
Finance, SCMP and Reader’s Digest. Mr. Pun has also worked for the
Metro Broadcast as advertising director and joined Apple Daily as
business director in 1996.
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Kwan Man Chun, aged 27, is the senior vice president of business
development and operations of the Group. Mr. Kwan joined the
Group on 15 November 1999. Mr. Kwan is in charge of all sales
opportunities as well as identifying partnership and strategic alliance
opportunities. He has single-handedly developed, launched and
operated 30.com, one of the top on-line Shopping site in Hong
Kong. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Kwan spent over two years with
Bain & Company, one of the leading global management consulting
firms, where he was responsible for the telecommunication and
technology areas. Mr. Kwan holds a bachelor degree in business
administration (first class honours) from The University of Hong
Kong.

To Man Yuen, aged 27, is the financial controller and company
secretary of the Group. Ms To joined the Group in August 2000. Ms
To has over three years' experience in an international accounting
firm. Ms To holds a bachelor degree of business administration from
The University of Hong Kong. Ms To is also an associate of the Hong
Kong Society of Accountants and a member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Ms To is responsible for all financial
reporting and company secretarial matters of the Group.

Wau Siu Kou, aged 51, is the financial controller of the CUP magazine.
Mr. Wu has been the financial controller of Interasia Publications
Limited. He has involved in the publication of Business Traveller Asia-
Pacific, Holiday-Hong Kong, Holiday-Singapore, Orientations, Asian
Oil & Gas and Insight. Mr. Wu joined the Group on 12 February
2001,
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on || May 2000 with
written terms of reference based on the guidelines set out in “A
Guide for the Formation of an Audit Committee” of the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants. The primary duties of the audit committee
are to review the Company’s annual report and accounts, half-yearly
reports and quarterly reports and to provide advice and comments
thereon to the Board. The audit committee will also be responsible
for reviewing and supervising the financial reporting process and
internal control procedures of the Group.

The following sets out the members of the Group’s audit committee:
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Name Position in the audit committee Position in the board of Directors
#®A REFZESZHN RESZESZHM

Shek Abraham Lai Him Chairman Independent non-executive Director
PEELE TE BYFNTES

Wong Richard Yue Chim Member Independent non-executive Director
I T ik & BYFATES
COMPENSATION COMMITTEE FHEES

Name Position in the compensation committee Position in the board of Directors
®A REMEES BN RESg BT

Wong Richard Yue Chim Chairman Independent non-executive Director
E T £ BYFNTES

Shek Abraham Lai Him Member Independent non-executive Director
PEELE =] BYFNTES
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The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company for the period from 8 May 2000 (date
of incorporation) to 31 March 2001 and of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2001.

GROUP REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in Bermuda on 8 May 2000 under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended). Pursuant to a group reorganisation
scheme to rationalise the Group structure in preparation for the
public listing of the Company’s shares on The Growth Enterprises
Market (the “GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) (the "Reorganisation”), the Company
acquired the entire issued capital of iFocus Group Limited (“iFocus”)
and directed iFocus to acquire the entire issued share capital of
Cyber Communications Corporation Ltd. (“CCC"), the then holding
company of the subsidiaries included in the Reorganisation, in
consideration of and in exchange for the Company’s allotted and
issued share capital. The Company therefore became the holding
company of the Group. Further details of the Reorganisation are set
out in note |, I3, 17 and 25 to the financial statements and in the
Company's prospectus dated 18 July 2000.

The shares of the Company were listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange with effect from 28 July 2000.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 25 to the financial statements. There were no changes in the
nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.
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SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Group’s turnover and contribution to loss from operating
activities for the year ended 31 March 2001 were all derived from
Hong Kong. An analysis of the Group's turnover and contribution to
loss from operating activities by principal activity for the year ended
31 March 2001 is as follows:

REBXRHE D
ET®E
BB R E S MR R

By principal activity:
E-commerce trading
Internet advertising and consultancy

Note: The contribution to loss from operating activities did not include the other
revenue as disclosed in note 4 to the financial statements.

RESULTS

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 March 2001 and the state of
affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set out in
the financial statements on pages 42 to 82.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Operating Results

TURNOVER —E S

LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES R R E B E
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS EYi ki

Assets and Liabilities

TOTAL ASSETS BEE
TOTAL LIABILITIES BBE
NET ASSETS EETFME
Notes:

The summary of financial information for each of the two years ended 31
March 2001 has been taken from the financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2001.The pro forma combined results of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 1999 has been taken from the Company’s
prospectus dated 18 July 2000 and includes pro forma adjustments relating to
the elimination of certain profit and loss items in respect of transactions
unrelated to the on-going businesses of the Group.

2. Since the reorganisation of the Group was completed in July 2000, the only
audited consolidated balance sheets for the Group that have been prepared
are those set out on page 43 of the financial statements.
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MBERNBE

Year ended 3| March
BE=A=1+—HLEE

2001 2000 1999
—®T-% C"TETE  —AANE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHETT
24,164 2,814 —
(78,863) (17,094) (125)
EEREE
31 March

=A=+—H
2001 2000
—gE-F _—TTTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
98,110 85,579
(8,695) (12,460)
89,415 73,119

MRE

HE-_ZT-F=-A=-+—BHILMEFESF
W BERBERSERAEEHE_TT—F
ZAZT—HLEFENMBRE - AEEHZE
—AANEFE=ZA=+—BLEFENEEAHE
ERBEEARRAR_ZEZEZEF LA+ /BRI
MARBRERRN  TELBREMEREBBESE
BEBANZ ST BETRARERER TR
BERE -

2. HRAEER _ZZZF LA TRER
HEAKEE -ERENEEZEFEEARSR
ERECVAMBIMBRE
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FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Group are set out in
note |12 to the financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries, all of which were acquired
pursuant to the Group reorganisation, are set out in notes |3 and
25 to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of the borrowings of the Group are set out in note 16 to
the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND WARRANTS

Details of movements in the Company's share capital, share options
and warrants during the year, together with the reasons therefor, are
set out in note |7 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights either under the
Company’s bye-laws/articles of association or the laws of Bermuda
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 19 to the financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2001, the Company’'s accumulated losses and
contributed surplus are HK$67,400,000 and HK$59,922,000,
respectively. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the
Company may make distributions to its members out of the
contributed surplus under certain circumstances. In addition, the
Company’s share premium account, in the amount of approximately
HK$95,398,000, may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES BE LEIWE LHES

Other than in connection with the Company’s Initial Public Offering BREBAARERAREERNDKERIZE

on the GEM, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries REENROEN B _ZTZTFLAZ

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities TNAB (RRFIRMNERIER EH2H)E

during the period from 28 July 2000 (date of listing of the —TEE-F=ZA=1+—RHIEHER T2

Company’s shares on the GEM) to 3| March 2001. RIEEAMNEARMEREE  LEXE

Bl A8 A &) A fa] £ 1 7%

DIRECTORS Bs

The directors of the Company during the year were: RRABNAFERNZEEFNAT ¢

Executive directors HITES

lp Saimond (Chairman) (appointed on | | May 2000) BWX (F/EF) (R=_ZZZFAHA
T—BEZE)

Cheng Albert Jinghan (appointed on || May 2000) IFg) (R—_ZTZZEFAHA
+—BEZE)

Yeung Kwok Mung (appointed on || May 2000) 15 Bl ik (RZZTZEFHA
+T—REZME)

Non-executive directors FHITES

Poon Kai Tik (appointed on || May 2000) & R (R_ZTZZEFAHA
+T—BEZE)

Huang Erwin Steve (appointed on || May 2000) 'K (RZZTZFHA
T—REZME)

Chung Wai Yang (appointed on || May 2000) EIRF (RZZEZEZEFHA
+—BEZE)

Tsang Moses Kwok Tai (appointed on || May 2000 B 2= (RZZEZEZEFHHA

and resigned on 28 January 2001) T—REZE-

—ZEET—%—HA
—+/\HEHE)

Independent non-executive directors BYFHITES

Wong Richard Yue Chim (appointed on || May 2000) F F# (RZZZTZEFHA
+T—REZME)

Shek Abraham Lai Him, P (appointed on | | May 2000) ARRATE+ (RZZZTZFHA
T—BEZE)

In accordance with articles 99 and 100 of the Company’s bye-laws, BEARANARIEKZERMAIFEOR

Yeung Kwok Mung, Huang Erwin Steve and Poon Kai Tik will retire by 10016 - 15 BlM& - 55 &k B2 )% RUE % 50 BD

rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the BRITHORREFASTHESTR  ER

forthcoming annual general meeting. EREEREE -
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES

Details of the directors’ emoluments and those of the five highest
paid employees in the Group are set out in notes 7 and 8 to the
financial statements, respectively.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing on
I July 2000.The contract may be terminated by either party giving to
the other not less than six months' prior written notice. Cheng
Albert Jinghan has undertaken to the Company not to issue such
written notice during the first 12 months of his appointment.

Each of the non-executive directors has entered into a non-
executive director’s contract with the Company with an initial term
of one year commencing on | July 2000 and will continue thereafter
for successive periods of one year provided that the Company may
terminate the contract at the end of each one year period by giving
at least one month’s prior written notice.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements, no director
had a significant beneficial interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the vyear.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had related party transactions, as further
detailed in note 24 to the financial statements, which also
constituted connected transactions under the GEM Listing Rules. In
the opinion of the directors, such connected transactions were
conducted in the normal course of business and the Company has
complied with the relevant requirements under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND WARRANTS EERROEIREZNVES

As at 31 March 2001, the interests of the directors and their R-ZZEZE—F=ZA=+—8 " BELARQA
associates in the share capital and warrants of the Company or its BES (BEER) GO ([HEEREH])
associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by FEVBRFEENEZMALE  EFREER
the Company pursuant to Section 29 of the Securities (Disclosure of 8 A TN RS H AR BOE B &) IR AN
Interests) Ordinance (the “SDI Ordinance”) were as follows: RIREER DN

Number of issued ordinary shares of
HK$0.0001 each in the Company
ARFEBREE0IBTZERITEERAE

Personal Family Corporate Other
Name interests interests interests interests Total
e BAER Kz QREz HtEs At
Cheng Albert Jinghan 1,326,000 13,206,000 — 602,490,000 617,022,000
LI (note 1) (note 2)
(P &ED) GEY)
Ip Saimond 243,456,000 — — — 243,456,000
= /N4
Yeung Kwok Mung 68,238,000 — — — 68,238,000
15 Bl iR
Poon Kai Tik 5,910,000 79,206,000 — — 85,116,000
& K (note 3)
(B aE3)
Huang Erwin Steve 25,326,000 — — — 25,326,000
Chung Wai Yang — — 83,166,000 — 83,166,000
EEF (note 4)
(B 3E4)
Tsang Moses Kwok Tai 13,290,000 — 151,806,000 — 165,096,000
=)EiEs (note 5)

(MF5E5)
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Notes:

@

3

)

©®)

These shares were held by Cheng Albert Jinghan's wife, Lo Irene Kam Sheung,
and therefore he was deemed to have an interest in these shares.

These shares were held by Drummond Finance Limited. Drummond Finance
Limited is the wholly-owned subsidiary of Umbel Inc., which is a company
owned by CIBC Trust Company (Bahamas) Limited as a trustee of the Albert
Cheng Family Trust. Cheng Albert Jinghan and his children are discretionary
beneficiaries of such a trust and Cheng Albert Jinghan was therefore deemed
to have an interest in these shares. Cheng Albert Jinghan is a director of
Drummond Finance Limited.

These shares were held by Poon Kai Tik's wife, Au Tak Yee, and therefore he
was deemed to have an interest in these shares.

These shares were held by Cyber Channel Limited, which is wholly-owned by
Chung Wai Yang, and therefore he was deemed to have an interest in these
shares.

These shares are held by MKT Holdings (Cayman Islands) LLC, which is
wholly-owned by Tsang Moses Kwok Tai, and he was therefore deemed to
have an interest in these shares.

The interests of the directors in the share options of the Company

are separately disclosed in the section “Directors’ rights to acquire

shares”.

No directors of the Company or their associates were interested in

the warrants of the Company.

Apart from the above and other than certain nominee interests in

the subsidiaries held in trust for the benefit of the Company, no

directors or their associates had any personal, family, corporate or

other interest in the equity or debt securities of the Company or

any of its associated corporations as defined in the SDI Ordinance.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Pursuant to the terms of the Company's Pre-IPO share option
scheme (the "Pre-IPO Plan”) adopted by the Company on 12 July
2000, the Company granted options to the following directors to
subscribe for shares in the Company of HK$0.000| each at an
exercise price of HK$0.0379 per share. Summary details of these
options which remained outstanding as at 31 March 2001 are as
follows:

36.com holdings limited

ESRERONER

BREARBAIR_ZEETFLAT_HESR
MERAREERBERESTS ([ERAM
BERIBRETED MGERK - ARFIEM
THEEREERE ZRER1ITHEE
0.03797 LR B AR A &R EE0.0001 7 7T
MR - WEBBRER_ZZT—F=A=
T—HERTE - HFBHAET -

Name of director

Number of shares
subject to the options

Expiration date

Esns BREN z2RGEBE fE % B

Ip Saimond 72,602,255 31 December 2005

E /NG —“TERFEFT_HA=+—H
Yeung Kwok Mung 72,602,255 31 December 2005

B BE —ZEERF+-A=+—H
Tsang Moses Kwok Tai 44,551,384 31 December 2005

B E%E “EERF+_-_A=+—H
Poon Kai Tik 19,800,615 31 December 2005

7 A —“TERFEFT_HA=+—H
Huang Erwin Steve 74257231 31 December 2005

= K —ZERF+-_A=+—H

216,981,740

Note: Each of the above options become exercisable as to 8.33% of the number of
shares issuable under the options, after each Reference Date immediately
after the date of commencement of dealings of the Company’s shares and
warrants on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.“Reference Date” means each of
31 March, 30 June, 30 September and 3| December.The first Reference Date
was 30 September 2000.

Further details of the Pre-IPO Plan are set out in note |7 to the
financial statements.

Mer: hWEBRBEZEEAR ARG MRREEE
BRFAIZERMABEER Al E52BHH
TE - REBREBERET FEHTZ2RMHEE
833% [2BAMIAGE=A=+—H8 "~
A=+RA - AA=+BE+=ZA=+—8-
BEE2BEHAE-_ZTTETFNLA=TAH -

BARARBEERBERETIFBIHNT S
WRMTI7 -
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Under the terms of a share option scheme conditionally adopted by
the Company on 12 July 2000 (the “Share Option Scheme”), the
directors may at their discretion grant options to full time employees
of the Group, including executive directors of the Company, to
subscribe for shares in the Company. Further details of the Share
Option Scheme are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.
The Share Option Scheme became effective upon the listing of the
Company's shares on the GEM of the Stock Exchange on 28 July
2000. No options have been granted to any directors of the
Company under the Share Option Scheme up to the date of this
report.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any directors or their
respective spouses or children under |8 vyears of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them, or was the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Company’s
directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2001, the following interests of 10% or more in the
issued share capital of the Company were recorded in the register of

interests required to be kept by the Company under Section 16(1)
of the SDI Ordinance:

Name

EW A

CIBC Trust Company (Bahamas) Limited
Umbel Inc. (note 1) (F$7E1)

Drummond Finance Limited (note 1) (F¥3E1)
Lo Irene Kam Sheung (note 2)

& i 1% (PR 2)

ACAEDL Limited (note 3) (Fff 3£ 3)

Chung Po Yang (note 3)

#EF (M)
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A Lz

Percentage

Number of of issued
shares held share capital
21T

Fir #% PR 2 % 49

R4 #E BaL
602,490,000 24.41%
602,490,000 24.41%
602,490,000 24.41%
617,022,000 25.00%
326,052,000 13.21%
336,192,000 13.62%
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Notes:

(1) Drummond Finance Limited is the wholly-owned subsidiary of Umbel Inc.,
which is a company owned by CIBC Trust Company (Bahamas) Limited as a
trustee of the Albert Cheng Family Trust. Cheng Albert Jinghan and his
children are discretionary beneficiaries of the trust and Cheng Albert Jinghan
was therefore deemed to have an interest in these shares. Cheng Albert
Jinghan is a director of Drummond Finance Limited.

(2) Lo Irene Kam Sheung is the wife of Cheng Albert Jinghan and therefore she
was deemed to have an interest in 603,816,000 shares in which Cheng Albert
Jinghan had an interest.

(3)  ACAEDL Limited is wholly owned by Chung Po Yang and Chung Po Yang was
therefore deemed to have an interest in these shares. Therefore, shareholdings
stated against ACAEDL Limited were entirely duplicated in the shareholdings
stated against Chung Po Yang. In addition, Chung Po Yang is personally
interested in 10,140,000 shares. Chung Po Yang is the brother of Chung Wai
Yang who is a non-executive director of the Company. Chung Wai Yang is also
a director of ACAEDL Limited.

Save as disclosed above, no persons, other than the directors of the
Company, whose interests are set out above, had registered an
interest in the share capital of the Company that was required to be
recorded under Section 16(1) of the SDI Ordinance.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
and the largest customer accounted for 30% and 2%, respectively,
of the total sales for the year. Purchases from the Group's five largest
suppliers and the largest supplier accounted for 33% and |1%,
respectively, of the total purchases for the year

Apart from iIASPEC Technologies (H.K.) Limited (“iASPEC"), in which
Tsang Moses Kwok Tai, the then non-executive director of the
Company, had a 2% beneficial equity interest, none of the directors
of the Company or any of their associates or any shareholder (which,
to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in any of
the Group's five largest customers or suppliers during the year. Mr.
Tsang is also a director of the holding company of iIASPEC. The total
purchases from IASPEC represented 1% of the purchases of the
Group for the year.
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POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of the significant post balance sheet events of the Group are
set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

SPONSOR'’S INTEREST

Neither the sponsor of the Company, Worldsec Corporate Finance
Limited (“Worldsec”), nor its associates obtained any material
benefit as a result of the listing of the Company on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange, other than: (i) by way of underwriting commissions
paid to its associate, Worldsec International Limited, for acting as one
of the underwriters; (i) the advisory and documentation fees paid to
Worldsec as a sponsor; (iii) by a sponsor agreement entered into
between Worldsec and the Company, pursuant to which Worldsec
received, and will receive, fees for acting as the Company’s retained
sponsor for the period from 28 July 2000 to 31 March 2003; and (iv)
Cheong Henry Ying Chew, one of the directors of Worldsec,
subscribed for 1,500 shares in CCC, at a consideration of
HK$750,000 on |7 February 2000 and became a shareholder of the
Company after the Reorganisation and held approximately 0.8% of
the Company'’s issued shares as at 31 March 2001.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2001, Worldsec, its directors,
employees and associates did not have any interest in the securities
of the Company or any members of the Group, or any right to
subscribe for or to nominate persons to subscribe for the securities
of the Company or any member of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, none of the directors nor the substantial
shareholders of the Company had any interest in any business that
directly or indirectly competed with the business of the Group
except that Cheng Albert Jinghan is a director of a company whose
principal business includes the provision of media services. The
Company may, in the future, expand its business activities to the
provision of content for broadband web television. Mr. Cheng has
the entire shareholding interest in this company.
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STAFF RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the staff retirement scheme of the Group and the
employer’s staff retirement costs charged to the profit and loss
account for the year are set out in notes 3 and 5 to the financial
statements, respectively.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM ISSUANCE OF NEW SHARES

The net proceeds of the 307,000,000 new shares issued by the
Company by way of placing and public offer at HK$0.36 per share,
which was subject to the terms specified in the Prospectus dated |8
July 2000 (“Share Offer"), after deducting related expenses, was
approximately HK$95,159,000. For the year ended 31 March 2001,
the Group applied approximately HK$90 million to achieve the
business objectives as set out in the Prospectus. Barring unforeseen
circumstances and based on the use of proceeds up to 31 March
2001, the directors believe that the Group has sufficient funds to
satisfy the future business objectives as set out in the Prospectus
dated 18 July 2000.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Committee™) on
'l May 2000 with written terms of reference for the purpose of
reviewing and providing supervision over the financial reporting
process and internal control systems of the Group. The Committee
comprises two independent non-executive directors, Wong Richard
Yue Chim and Shek Abraham Lai Him. The Group’s financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2001 have been reviewed
by the Committee, who were of the opinion that such statements
complied with the applicable accounting standards, the Stock
Exchange and legal requirements, and that adequate disclosures had
been made.

APPOINTMENT OF COMPLIANCE OFFICER

During the year, Ip Saimond was appointed as the compliance officer
in compliance with Rule 5.14 of the GEM Listing Rules and assumed
the responsibilities in respect thereof, as set out in Rule 5.15 of the
GEM Listing Rules, with effect from |1 May 2000.
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Report of the Directors
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CHANGE OF COMPANY SECRETARY AND QUALIFIED FERARAMERAGEREM@
ACCOUNTANT

Ng Andrew Shu Bun resigned as the company secretary and the MEWERRARRNARWEES BB
qualified accountant of the Company and To Carol Man Yuen was SEMERL  EXNHEZERRRFN
appointed as the company secretary and the qualified accountant of NRAWERSGERGHA BT T—F
the Company with effect from | March 2001. =“A—BREX-

AUDITORS BB

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as LK G BB EMmER - BT K
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming BRI AT R AR R EAN A RE R
annual general meeting. RENGEEITHRRBFRAE LIER -

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD EEEEm

Ip Saimond ENE

Chairman FE

Hong Kong HB

26 June 200 —EE-FXA-+AH



Report of the Auditors
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Zll ERNST & YOUNG

7R & FEOEF O

To the members
36.com Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 42 to 82 which
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of
financial statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing
financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently. It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion,
based on our audit, on those statements and to report our opinion
to you.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. An audit
includes an examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes
an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by
the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company's
and the Group's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately
disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the
overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial
statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.
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36.com holdings limited *g,—( % Eﬂ]' #ﬁ %

Opinion b3

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of BMRE  EROMBEHREHEEERAT
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 3| March ki EAFk BEEER_TZ—F
2001 and of the loss and cash flows of the Group for the year then ZA=+T—BNHERAN EXEHZE
ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the ZHEIFENBEIREERE Y ERR
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. EE(RAIEID 2 BERTEE MRS -
Ernst & Young RREHMERHR

Certified Public Accountants B ESEED

Hong Kong HB

26 June 200 —EE-FXA-+AH
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year ended 3| March 2001

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

BE-ZTT—F=R=+—HLFE

TURNOVER

Other revenue

Cost of merchandise sold

Advertising and marketing expenses

Software acquisition and hardware
maintenance costs

Depreciation expenses

Rental expenses

Staff costs

Other operating expenses

LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Finance costs
LOSS BEFORE TAX
Tax
LOSS FROM ORDINARY
ACTIVITIES ATTRIBUTABLE

TO SHAREHOLDERS

LOSS PER SHARE
— Basic (cent)

— Diluted

BERE

H b U 25

& Ak A
BERTSHESH
BEHGHMNREBHER
TESH

e H

8 TR
Hih2ES H
REXKER
MEER

BB AT 1B

IR

BRREGEEEXRBER

BRER
— AR ()

— #BF

Other than the loss for the year, the Group had no recognised gains

or losses. Accordingly, a consolidated statement of recognised gains

and losses is not presented in the financial statements.

36.com holdings limited

2001 2000

—B2BR-F —ZTITEF

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
i FBT T
4 24,164 2814
4 5,715 364
(9,499) .

(26,843) (6,406)

(1,057) (2,160)

(5,701) (689)

(1,625) (377)

(38,485) (6,063)

(24,594) (4,551)

> (77,925) (17,068)
6 (907) (26)
(78,832) (17,094)

? 31) _
2 (78,863) (17,094)
. (3.33) (0.79)
I N/A N/A

AREZRREBAN  AEEBECRERR

MmEER
RREEREAFTER -

N/A @ 3@ A

PR bt B 765 ¥l 3% o 3F 4 2 51| B R



36.com holdings limited

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Accounts receivable
Other receivables
Pledged time deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accruals
Deferred revenue

Finance lease payables

Tax

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term portion of finance
lease payables

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Issued capital

Capital advances from shareholders

Reserves

Ip Saimond
ENE
Chairman
FE

ERBEE
Bl & &

REBEE

& W R K

H 1t & U 5K I8
EERTEHERX
BekBReEFEY

RBAE

et BRI R BT B A
i AT W 2

RE S RN IR
18

REBEEFE

MEERRBAEME

ERBEE
MEMEENRIA
=)

BEXRKHE
BEBITRA
I RE R GR
ffi

Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

31 March 2001
—2T-%=A=t+-8

43p )

2001 2000

—R¥-F _TTTH

Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
it FHT THR
12 11,627 9.706
1,275 1,001

14 4,548 4902
15 2,274 2203
15 78,386 67,767
86,483 75873

4,062 528

— 1,067

16 4,490 339
— 25

8,552 9,764

77,931 66,109

89,558 75815

l6 143 2,696
89,415 73,119

17 247 216
18 — 40,000
19 89,168 32,903
89,415 73.119

Yeung Kwok Mung

mE &
Director

o



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
%5—1_ é ;E ﬁ ﬁ = a:,E 36.com holdings limited

year ended 3| March 2001
BE_ZTT F=A=+—RHLLFE

2001 2000
—ER-F _TIZTTHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FHET FAET
NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM REXBRESRHEFE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 20(a) (78,187) (13364)
RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS AND R EEIH K @& R A
SERVICING OF FINANCE
Interest received B U F 5 5,419 364
Interest paid BN A E () (16)
Interest element on finance ENmERERSHN
lease rental payments M2 & (905) (10)
Net cash inflow from returns on # & Bl ¥ & E & KA
investments and servicing of finance RERANFR 4,512 338
TAX BIE
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEAFEN (56) =
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Purchases of fixed assets BEETEE (5,010) (4,512)
Increase in pledged time deposits BB EHBEFIEM (71) (2,203)
Net cash outflow from investing RERHzHERL FHE
activities (5,081) 6,715)
NET CASH OUTFLOW BEFORE MEITBHAESREFE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES (78,812) (19,741)



36.com holdings limited

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of share capital
Capital advances from shareholders
Share issue expenses
Capital element of finance lease
rental payments

Net cash inflow from financing
activities

INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances
Unpledged time deposits

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BMEEH
AT AP 15 FRIR
HX$,§$§§/TJ\
BITRMAX
BMEHEHEEH
BEARE D

BMEEABZEETR
R

RERBEESEEY
0

FNzBHe LA FEY

FRZESRAESEEY

ReRRESEUEHRIN

e MIRITHEER
REWE TR

)

BERER

year ended 3| March 2001

Notes
Bt &%

20(b)

F=ZRA=t+—HLFE

2001 2000
—BE-F C—TTTH
HK$°000 HK$'000
T FHT
110,520 50,000
— 40,000
(15,361) _
(5.728) (2:492)
89,431 87.508
10,619 67.767
67,767 _
78,386 67.767
2,737 32,767
75,649 35,000
78,386 67,767




Balance Sheet

ﬁEE{ﬁ% 36.com holdings limited

31 March 2001
—E2-F£=A=+-8

Notes HK$’000
B &E FE T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RH B R AR 2 [3 88,134
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEY 15 33
88,167
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRFEE
Issued capital BT 17 247
Reserves (Fke 19 87,920
88,167
Ip Saimond Yeung Kwok Mung
ENE BEE
Chairman Director

Ee] EE



Notes to Financial Statements
36.com holdings limited

GROUP REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in Bermuda on 8 May 2000 under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended). On 12 July
2000, pursuant to a reorganisation to rationalise the Group's
structure in preparation for the public listing of the Company’s
shares on The Growth Enterprises Market (the “GEM") of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™)
(the “Reorganisation™), the Company acquired the entire issued
capital of iFocus Group Limited (“iFocus™) and directed iFocus
to acquire the entire issued share capital of Cyber
Communications Corporation Ltd. (“CCC"), the then holding
company of the subsidiaries included in the Reorganisation, in
consideration of and in exchange for the Company’s allotted
and issued share capital. The Company therefore became the
holding company of the Group. Further details of the
Reorganisation and the subsidiaries involved therein are set out
in notes |3, 17 and 25 to the financial statements and in the
Company's prospectus dated |8 July 2000.

The shares of the Company were listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange with effect from 28 July 2000.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

During the year, the Group was involved in the provision of
Internet advertising, e-commerce, content distribution and
Internet consultancy services.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Statements of Standard Accounting Practice,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 March 2001
—E2-F£=A=+-8

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation and presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
using the merger basis of accounting. On this basis, the
Company has been treated as the holding company of its
subsidiaries acquired through the Reorganisation for both
financial years presented, rather than from the date of their
acquisition pursuant to the Reorganisation on [2 July 2000.
Accordingly, the consolidated results and cash flows of the
Group for each of the two years ended 31 March 2001 include
the results and cash flows of the Company and its subsidiaries
with effect from | April 1999 or since their respective dates of
incorporation, where this is a shorter period. The comparative
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2000 has been
prepared on the assumption that the above Reorganisation had
been completed at that date.

In the opinion of the directors, the consolidated financial
statements prepared on the above basis present more fairly
the results and state of affairs of the Group as a whole.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances within
the Group have been eliminated on consolidation.

As the Company was incorporated on 8 May 2000, no
comparative balance sheet of the Company at 31 March 2000
has been presented in these financial statements.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company in which the Company, directly or
indirectly, controls more than half of its voting power or issued
share capital, or controls the composition of its board of
directors.

Interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost unless, in the opinion
of the directors, there have been diminutions in values
considered to be other than temporary in nature, when they
are written down to values determined by the directors.

36.com holdings limited
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Notes to Financial Statements
36.com holdings limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.
The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after fixed assets have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the profit
and loss account in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the fixed
asset, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that
asset.

The carrying amounts of fixed assets are reviewed regularly to
assess whether their recoverable amounts have declined below
their carrying amounts. When such a decline has occurred,
their carrying amounts are reduced to their recoverable
amounts. The recoverable amount is the amount which the
Group expects to recover from the future use of an asset,
including its residual value on disposal. In determining the
recoverable amount, expected future cash flows generated by
the assets are not discounted to their present values. The
amount of the reduction to recoverable amount is charged to
the profit and loss account.

When assets are sold or retired, their cost and accumulated
depreciation are eliminated from the accounts and any gain or
loss resulting from their disposal, being the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, is included in the profit and loss account.

3.
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31 March 2001
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fixed assets and depreciation (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each asset over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 20%

Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms or 5 years,
whichever is shorter

Office equipment 20%

Computer equipment 33'/5%
Leased assets

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the asset is capitalised at the present value of
the minimum lease payments and recorded together with the
obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the
purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases are included in fixed assets and depreciated over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the profit and loss account so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease
terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of the assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Rentals applicable to such operating
leases are charged to the profit and loss account on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are recognised and carried at the original
invoice amount less any provision for doubtful debts which are
made when collection of the full amount is no longer probable.
Bad debts are written off as incurred.

36.com holdings limited
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Notes to Financial Statements
36.com holdings limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
significant timing differences to the extent it is probable that
the liability will crystallise in the foreseeable future. A deferred
tax asset is not recognised until its realisation is assured beyond
reasonable doubt.

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the applicable
rates of exchange ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the
balance sheet date are translated at the applicable rates of
exchange ruling at that date. Exchange differences are dealt
with in the profit and loss account.

On consolidation, the financial statements of overseas
subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
applicable rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.
The resulting translation differences are included in the
exchange fluctuation reserve.

Development costs

All costs incurred in the acquisition, development,
enhancement and maintenance of the software required to
support the Company’s vertical portals are charged to the
profit and loss account as incurred.

Advertising and marketing expenses

Advertising and marketing expenses are charged to the profit
and loss account in the period in which they are incurred.
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31 March 2001
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Barter transactions

When goods or services are exchanged or swapped for
dissimilar goods or services, the exchange is regarded as a
transaction which generates revenue and barter revenue and
expenses are recognized. Barter revenue and expenses are
measured at the fair value of the goods or services received,
adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash equivalents
transferred. When the fair value of the goods or services
received cannot be measured reliably, barter revenue and
expenses are measured at the fair value of the goods or
services given up, adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash
equivalents transferred.

Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for
all its employees. The Scheme became effective from |
December 2000. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
the profit and loss account as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the Scheme. The assets of the
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group's employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the Scheme.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party, or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if
they are subject to common control or common significant
influence. Related parties may be individuals or corporate
entities.
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Notes to Financial Statements
36.com holdings limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to the buyer
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods;

(b) advertising income, on a time proportion basis over the
period that the related advertising services are rendered;

(c) income from the provision of services, when the relevant
services have been rendered; and

(d) interest income, on a time proportion basis taking into
account the principal outstanding and the effective rate of
interest applicable.

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue represents advertising income, which has
been invoiced, but for which the related services have not been
rendered. Deferred advertising income revenue is recognised in
the profit and loss account in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy on revenue recognition.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash
equivalents represent short term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which were within three months of maturity when acquired,
less advances from banks repayable within three months from
the date of the advance. For the purpose of balance sheet
classification, cash equivalents represent assets similar in nature
to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

3.
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31 March 2001
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4.  TURNOVER AND REVENUE 4, EEHRWH

ERBAIRHE ZES MER R
SEREHEMNERERENTNE

Turnover represents the invoiced value of advertising and
consultancy services performed and the invoiced value of

goods sold, net of discounts and returns. RE -
The Group's turnover and revenue for the year arose from the AEEXRFENEXERBRKZEKE T
following activities: Y| B I8 EFE
2001 2000
—REFF —ZEEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Sale of goods BEmiHE 10,267 —
Advertising income B & WA 13,897 1,814
Technical consultancy income B i 8 8 U A — 1,000
Turnover =4 24,164 2,814
Interest income B A 5,419 364
Sundry income FHERA 296 —
Other revenue H b i 2= 5715 364
Total revenue for the year RNEE A 29,879 3,178
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31 March 2001
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5. LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 5. REXBER
The Group's loss from operating activities is arrived at after A (HOBR) THEB B2 AEEK
charging/(crediting): EERBGEIE -
2001 2000
—EE-F —EEETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cost of merchandise sold EEEmKA 9,499 —
Depreciation: e -
Owned fixed assets BEBRTEE 1,874 362
Leased fixed assets HERBEEE 3,827 327
Loss on disposal of fixed assets & EE & EE 8B 1,662 —
Operating lease rentals for land T RIEEFHHE 2 £ &
and buildings HEME 1,625 377
Auditors’ remuneration % 256 B & 315 100
Staff costs (excluding directors’ BIXRA(TBEMET
remuneration disclosed in BEENESZHE)
note 7):
Wages and salaries FehIE 32,791 6,063
Staff retirement benefits* 8 TR KA 1,548 —
34,339 6,063
Interest income MEMKA (5,419) (364)
* At 31 March 2001, there were no forfeited contributions available to * R-_TET—F=A=+—H  NEBLELM
the Group to reduce contributions of the staff retirement scheme in Y2 W A R CRT A0 0R 2R F By B TR ¢R A 81 B9 R
future years (2000: Nil). (ZEZTTF &) -
6. FINANCE COSTS 6. WMEEH
Group
£
2001 2000
—EE-F —EEEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Interest on bank overdrafts RITHEZFE 2 16
Finance lease charges MEMEERX 905 10

907 26
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration, disclosed pursuant to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange and Section 161 of the Companies Ordinance, is as

follows:

Fees: we
Executive directors HITES
Non-executive directors FEHITES
Independent non-executive BIATESE

directors

Other emoluments for
executive directors:
Salaries, allowances and

HTESFHHMBHS

e EMNREM

benefits in kind EmEH
Retirement scheme RIRET &) K
contributions
Discretionary bonuses ) 7E FE AT

The remuneration paid by the Group to the three executive

directors of the Company for the year ended 31 March 200
analysed on an individual basis was HK$870,000, HK$ |,386,000

and HK$ 1,710,000, respectively.

The remuneration paid by the Group to the two independent

non-executive directors of the Company for the year ended 3|

March 2001 was HK$90,000 each.

36.com holdings limited

EEM=

1R 45 B 22 AT Bl AR 75 25 £ AR I AN
CRRUERDN E 16 MR BERNE E <
HBOT -

Group

%m
2001 2000
—e®-F _FTTEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET

180

180

3,839 —

127

3,966

4,146

AEEHE-_TT—F=A=1+—8
FHFEDRRAARAR ZMNHAITESESY
<1 % 81870,000% 7T * 1,386,000 T &
1,710,000 T &Y Bl & o

AEBHE-_TZT— ¢5H5+—E
I FEERMAB L IERITESE SN
B 4 90,0007% 7T, ©
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office. There were no
arrangements under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration during the year

During the year, share options to subscribe for 145,204,510
shares and 71,777,230 shares in the Company of HK$0.000|
each at an exercise price of HK$0.0379 per share were
granted to certain executive directors and non-executive
directors of the Company, respectively. In the absence of a
readily available market value for options on the shares in the
Company, the directors were unable to arrive at an accurate
assessment of the value of these options. Accordingly, no value
was included in directors’ remuneration in respect of the share
options granted.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included three (2000: Nil) directors, whose remuneration are
set out in note 7 above.The details of the remuneration of the
remaining two (2000: five) highest paid, non-director
employees during the year are set out as follows:

Employees: B8 :
Salaries, allowances and EAX#H& 2K

benefits in kind H i E Y1a 7

e 0>

31 March 2001
EE—F=A=+—H

EEME (8

RAFERN  AEBVERE S
EAME - ERMAREEHENA
By EERE) - RIERBERME - A% H
TEENRESEFARRXFRBME
B B = B -

RAFERN - ARAFIRETARITE
FHEIFPTESREARTEESR
0.0379/8 7t * 9 Bl R 145,204,511 08%
B& 9 & 71,777,2308% B% 19 &) 5 A% 4& -
FR R ZN 2 &) IR {0 B B8 AR D 4 ) B B
WM TE  BtEEREERTE
I EERENEE - ALt - TESH
TAVEBERLMNERENERE -

EIfUREHESR

RAFEEAR  AEBAUSFHES
=M (ZEEEF  BA)RE
FORENOWESFBE RN EXWRET
BT - EHBMA(ZTETF - fAfL)
REFHNFEEREENMESFBL
T

Group

%8
2001 2000
—EE-F —ZEEEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT TR
1,978 2,315
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

The number of employees whose emoluments fell within the
following bands is as follows:

Nil — HK$ 1,000,000
HK$ 1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000

T#E T — 1,000,000/ 7T

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the highest paid, non-director employees as an inducement to
join, or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of
office.

During the year, share options to subscribe for 39,601,230 and
3,960,126 shares in the Company of HK$0.000| each at an
exercise price of HK$0.0379 and HK$0.0909 per share
respectively, were granted to the remaining two highest paid,
non-director employees of the Group. In the absence of a
readily available market value for options on the shares in the
Company, the directors were unable to arrive at an accurate
assessment of the value of these options. Accordingly, no value
was included in the remuneration of the highest paid
employees in respect of the share options granted. No share
options were granted to the five highest paid, non-director
employees of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2000.

1,000,001 7T — 1,500,000/ 7T

8.
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EfUBSHES (8

NFETIHcBENEEAKNT :

2001 2000
—BB-F _—TITETF
Number of Number of
employees employees
BEAH BEAHK
| 5

RAFERN  AEBYERRSHIE
EZREXNNME - (ERASBEEFM
AREE - RAEMAR R REHAER
BEmmE -

RAFER  ARRAH T KRR
SHIEEREERLUKRTEESR
0.03797% JTL E20.090978 7T + o B R B
39,601,230/% A% 17 23,960, | 26 A% A% 17 B-
FERE - ARARFIRG B EREN
mO RN TE BtESKE
BRI EUHEHERENEB - Bt
FhRflismEHFESTEENHS AL
EEEEEHNBERENEE #EZ
TEEF=ZA=Z+—HIEFE &%
ENAUGaFfESEETEER
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TAX

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group did not generate any assessable profits in Hong Kong
during the year (2000: Nil). The tax charge for the year ended
31 March 2001 arose from an underprovision in the prior
years.

The Group did not have any significant unprovided deferred
tax in respect of the year (2000: Nil).

LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

The net loss from ordinary activities attributable to
shareholders dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company for the period from 8 May 2000 (date of
incorporation) to 31 March 2001 is HK$67,400,000.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss
from ordinary activities attributable to shareholders for the
year of HK$78,863,000 (2000: HK$17,094,000) and the
weighted average of 2,365,693,000 (2000: 2,161,026,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year. The number of shares
used to calculate the 2000 basic loss per share represents the
pro forma issued share capital of the Company on the basis
that the Reorganisation had been completed on | April 1999.

Diluted loss per share for the years ended 3| March 2001 and
2000 have not been presented as the exercise of the share
options granted by the Company would have an anti-dilutive
effect on the basic loss per share for these years and the
exercise price of the Company’s warrants was higher than the
average market price of the Company's ordinary shares during
the period from 28 July 2000 to 31 March 2001.

59p »
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BRER

ERERNEERBBFANRKRRE
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NEE BT ERME T
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12.  FIXED ASSETS 12. BIE&EE
Group -
Furniture Leasehold Office Computer
and fixtures  improvements equipment equipment Total
BAREKE HEWERELE BLERE 1 ES CE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TRT TRT TRT THRT
Cost: N
At beginning of year F4 1,479 — 341 7,575 10,395
Reclassification Eg]) (559) 559 — — —
Additions NE 165 397 215 8,507 9,284
Disposals & — (956) (1,086) — (2,042)
At 31 March 2001 R_EE—F
=R=+—H 1,085 — 470 16,082 17,637

Accumulated depreciation: ~ RFEHE :

At beginning of year F4 28 — 47 614 689
Provided during the vyear RERRE 213 166 304 5018 5,701
Disposals HE = (166) (214) — (380)
At 31 March 2001 RZTT—F
=A=+—H 241 — 137 5,632 6,010
Net book value: BRIEFE -
At 31 March 2001 RZFE—F
=A=+—"H 844 — 333 10,450 [1,627
At 31 March 2000 RZEETEF
=A=+—"H [,451 — 1,294 6,961 9,706
The net book value of the Group's fixed assets held under rEEREREHERENECEE
finance leases as at 31 March 2001 amounted to HK$7,836,000 R_ZEZE-—F=A=+—HOKREF
(2000: HK$5,557,000). 578360008 T (—EET & -

5,557,000 JT,) ©
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unlisted shares, at cost JE LMD (TTZW )
Due from subsidiaries JiE U BT /B X B FR T
Less: Provisions for B RE B

diminutions in values

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries, all of which were
acquired pursuant to the reorganisation summarised in note |,

are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Prepayments Ta R IE
Sundry deposits MEES
Bank interest receivable JFE W SR 17 7 B
Staff loans receivable EWETIE ?ﬁ(
Other debtors H b & U 5K T

The staff loans are unsecured, bear interest at the Hong Kong
prime rate and are repayable on demand. Included in the
balance was a loan made to Mr. Lai Chak Fun, an officer of the
Group. The amount outstanding on the loan at the balance
sheet date and the maximum amount so outstanding during
the year were HK$ 1,140,000 and HK$ 1,200,000, respectively.

Bt 3 ¥R R MY R

31 March 2001
EE—F=A=+—H

RH B AR 2 E&®

Company
NG
HK$'000
TiET

60,093
95,041

155,134
(67,000)
88,134

FEUMBRRRBEREER  2EM
B % B & 5 e

RAFHB AR B FHBEHN B RE
ffsE25 - B & FHI B & B TR M
HEIBENEABA -

H ftb f& W SRR

Group

&
2001 2000
—EE-F _ZTTTHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
1,965 3,622
957 965
308 —
1,318 —
= 315
4,548 4,902

BETERAEERR L/(%.Sﬁéﬂﬁﬁﬂ
KREFENE - MEFZEKRERE -

BHREFTA—EET $$@ﬁﬂz/\,§é}%
BIJE%EE’JT,*K REEH  ZEE
A ROKIBARF AR RAED
%ﬁﬂJmowéﬁp&umawaﬁno
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I5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 5. RERBELEEY
Group Company
&8 A
2001 2000 2001 2000

—ERF _TTTF —B¥—F —_TTEF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER THET FHET TATT

Cash and bank balances He MIBITHERF 2,737 32,767 33 —
Time deposits EHFER 77,923 37,203 — —
80,660 69,970 33 —
Less: Pledged time deposits o BB T BE R (2,274) (2,203) — —
78,386 67,767 33 —
16. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES l6. MMEHERSIE
There were obligations under finance leases at the balance REREB  RMEEEEENT :

sheet date as follows:

Group
&=
2001 2000
—2E-F _IZTTETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Amounts payable: AR TSR B RIE -
Within one year —F A 4,692 3,764
In the second year EF 149 2,879
In the third to fifth years, F=FEELF
inclusive (BHEEEME) = 130
Total minimum finance lease xEREHEERENKIE
payments k) 4,841 6,773
Future finance charges RRBEE R (208) (686)
Total net finance lease payables & & 7 & FE T RIB A F 58 4,633 6,087
Portion classified as current JIERBBREZH D
liabilities (4,490) (3391)
Long term portion REIEE D 143 2,696
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16.

FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES (Continued)

The finance lease payables of HK$4,274,000 were secured by
personal guarantees and indemnities given by Cheng Albert
Jinghan, an executive director of the Company. Such personal
guarantees and indemnities were released and replaced by the
Company subsequent to its listing on the GEM on 28 July
2000.

SHARE CAPITAL
Shares

The following changes in the authorised and issued share
capital of the Company took place during the period from 8
May 2000 (date of incorporation) to 31 March 2001:

(a) On 8 May 2000, the authorised share capital of the
Company was HK$100,000 divided into 10,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each, all of which were issued
and allotted nil paid to Ip Saimond, an executive director
of the Company, on 9 May 2000;

(b) On 24 May 2000, the authorised share capital of
10,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.0l each of the
Company was sub-divided into 1,000,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.000| each by subdividing every issued
ordinary share of HK$0.01 each of the Company into
100 ordinary shares of HK$0.000| each;

(c) On 24 May 2000, the authorised share capital of the
Company was increased from HK$100,000 to
HK$500,000 by the creation of 4,000,000,000 additional
ordinary shares of HK$0.000| each, ranking pari passu in
all respects with the then existing issued share capital of
the Company;

31 March 2001
EE—F=A=+—H

BMEREEMNRE (@)

b & 78 & FE 5 3 IE 4,274,00078 7T B A
RAZHITESBREHLEECBAE
REBERBEER ZEFERER
BRIJBEARTN _ZETTFLA-
+N\B LEWEBELHER - WHAQA
FRELAX ©

@S
gy

RRABEERCETRAHR T
TFERANE (EMKRIZBEH) EE=
EE-F=-A=1+—HILHRENE
mr

@ RZZEZEZTFHANA AR
7] K& 7E A% A8 100,000 7T 2 B
10,000,0000% & A% M 1B 0.017% 7T
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by RZZTETEZEFRA=-+HTA -
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17. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Shares (Continued)

(d)

(®)

On 12 July 2000, as part of the Reorganisation described
in note | to the financial statements, the Company
acquired through iFocus the entire issued share capital of
CCC in consideration for (i) the allotment and issue of an
aggregate of 710,996,000 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.000| each credited as fully paid at par and the
procurement of the transfer by Ip Saimond of
841,594,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.000| each, credited
as fully paid at pan to the then shareholders of CCC
(other than Ip Saimond); and (ii) the crediting as fully paid
at par the 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares which had been
allotted and issued nil paid to Ip Saimond on 9 May 2000;

On 12 July 2000, the Company issued and allotted an
aggregate of 98,634,000 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.000!| each at par to |2 Internet content providers/
consultants of the Group;

36.com holdings limited

17. BRA (&)

Rt (&)

(d)

(e)

RZZEZEZEF+LA+=-H " 1E
EUERERNE I TN ERE
HE)—Z(1n - RABIFEB iFocus
Wi CcCcCc mEaRHBBTHR
K- REABGRABRERET
‘.‘HXOOOON%TEE’]%&%%HQD 7~
710,996,0008% + I A BR%I A B &
R REFELXEZERSR
M {E 0000178 ot /) & @ |
841,594,0000% (I EE A K% A
BEHRE) F CCCERHHNRR
(ERX B X (i)
1,000,000,000/% & i A% ¥& E 1B A
BRI ABEBE - ZIROHR
ZETTFRANBEURA
BARAFAREZERETTER

o

}j‘z o

RZZEZEEFELA+=ZH K
RAIMN NAEENEBAA
AR, BERIREmERTRE
%t & F£ 98,634,0000% & A% W &
0.000 | 7 7T & #fr & 38 % 98,634,000
B o
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17. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Shares (Continued)

()

(8

On 12 July 2000, the Company issued and allotted an
aggregate of 351,396,000 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.000| each pursuant to the option conversion
agreements of certain subsidiaries where the
optionholders agreed to convert their exercisable options
into the ordinary shares of the Company. A total of
351,396,000 shares were issued and allotted, at par as to
348,342,000 shares, at approximately HK$0.0667 per
share as to 90,000 shares, at HK$0.08 per share as to
30,000 shares, at approximately HK$0.0833 per share as
to 162,000 shares, at approximately HK$0.0857 per share
as to 168,000 shares, at approximately HK$0.0882 per
share as to 204,000 shares, at approximately HK$0.0893
per share as to 756,000 shares, at HK$0.09 per share as
to 150,000 shares, at approximately HK$0.0901| per share
as to 666,000 shares and at approximately HK$0.0906
per share as to 828,000 shares; and

On 28 July 2000, pursuant to the listing of the Company'’s
shares and warrants on the GEM of the Stock Exchange,
the Company issued by way of the share placement and
the public offer (the “Share Offer”) 307,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.000!| each at HK$0.36 per share for a
total cash consideration of HK$ 110,520,000 before the
related issue expenses.

31 March 2001

F-#=A=+-8

17. BRA (&)

Rt (&)

()

)

RZZEEZEFLA+=H " &K
NAIREEE TWEB QRG] L
iR IR R AR M (Rt - B
BREBEARERKEZETITED
EREERLAAQNAN LA
) - B kEZESRAE
00001 T #T Z @R & H
351,396,0000% ° 4T R AL # & H
351,396,0000% B& 7 @ & A
348,342,0000% 7} i& ™ 1B % 17 -
90,000% #% & A% #490.0667/%8 7T -
30,0008% % & W& 0.08% 7T
162,0000% 3% & % £90.0833/8 7T -
168,000% & & A% £90.0857/& 7T -
204,000/% & & Ix #90.08827%% 7T -
756,0008% & & JX #90.0893% 7T -
150,0008% % & f% #7 0.09/8 7T -
666,000 1% & #% #70.090 1 B TT -
LA % 828,0000% ¥2 & A% 490.0906 7%
TLET R
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17. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 17. B ()
Shares (Continued) B4 (&)
The following is a summary of the above movements in the AT A AR ENATE kB EITRA
authorised and issued share capital of the Company: SEHNHRE
Number of Number of Paid-up
shares shares nominal
authorised issued value
BRBR®
EEREX  EBRIRA ROEE
Note ‘000 000 HK$'000
Bt &% T T TET
On incorporation, shares issued BT A 37 B R AR K Y
nil paid B#&1TR (a) 10,000 10,000 —
Share subdivision R 47 4 (b) 990,000 990,000 —
Increase in authorised share capital /% i€ BR 4K 3 A (0) 4,000,000 — —
On acquisition of CCC: Y i CCChs - (d)
Consideration shares issued BETRERD — 710,996 71
Incorporation shares credited ABRSI R 3R IR 3% o 1 AR 19
as fully paid — — 100
Shares issued to Internet content REEZRTTEHEARNR
providers/consultants at par R/ B R AR5 (e) = 98,634 10
Shares issued pursuant to options RERETHBRA LA
conversion agreements of BREAKRGZZITHRG
certain subsidiaries @ — 351,396 35
Pro forma share capital as RZZEEZEF=A=1T—HH
at 31 March 2000 BERA 5,000,000 2,161,026 216
New issue on the public listing NRBENHRET (g — 307,000 31

Share capital as at 31 March 2001 ~ RZZE—F=A=+—HHRA 5,000,000 2,468,026 247
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17. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 17. BRA ()

Share options i IR e
RZZEZEZFLA+TZH - RRE®A
TEXRRREERMBRESS ([BX
AHREENERETTE] AX 2R
RERARBE_ZEZEZTEFLA TN
HIZEMNEBERERA - REBEFXRXAH
BERBRETENGRR - ARAR
—ETRFL AT ZBRALBMITE
2 MU TESTRAEEEMT3
EEREAIRBARRERRNAE
PeE316516,16717 ° L FEIREN
ERma T

On 12 July 2000, the shareholders adopted a Pre-IPO share
option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Plan™).The principal terms of the
Pre-IPO Plan are set out in the Company's prospectus dated
[8 July 2000. Pursuant to the terms of the Pre-IPO Plan,
316,516,167 options to subscribe for ordinary shares in the
Company were granted to 2 executive directors, 3 non-
executive directors and 73 other employees of the Group on
12 July 2000. Summary details of these options were as follows:

Number of

shares subject Exercise price

Grantees Notes to the options per share  Expiration date
TEBRETT

AR A M BOTNKROBE BROTEE EWAH

HK$

BT
2 executive directors 0] 145,204,510 0.0379 31 December 2005
B ITES —EERF+ZA=1+—H
3 non-executive directors () 71,777,230 0.0379 31 December 2005
MIIFMITES —ETRF+-_A=+—8H
2 employees () 47,521,476 0.0379 31 December 2005
2ufE8 —EEAFFT-A=1+—H
65 employees () 47,432,409 0.0909 31 July 2004
65018 & —EENFEELA=1+—H
6 employees (i) 4,580,542 0.0909 31 July 2004
6hzfE 8B —_TEMFELA=+—H

316,516,167
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17. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 17. B (&)

Share options (Continued) iR (&)

Notes: Mt &F

(i) Each of these options becomes exercisable as to 8.33% of the number (1) 1t 55 8 S A B2 BE R 12 A AR {9 A R AR
of shares issuable under the options, after each Reference Date HEEBRMAIZRAREE®R @ A
immediately after the date of commencement of dealings of the EX2RBEHTE - RBREBRE
Company's shares and warrants on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. Al 31T 2833%M ARG - 2R EH]
“Reference Date” means each of 31 March, 30 June, 30 September and EBRE=A=+—H - ~A=+H"
31 December. The first Reference Date was 30 September 2000. NA=Z=+BER+ZA=+—H - -&f@

2REAPR-_ZZTFAA=TH -

(i) Each of these options becomes exercisable as to 6.25% of the number (if) 1t 55 8 S A B2 BE AR 12 A AR {9 A R AR
of shares issuable under the options, after each Reference Date (as HEEBRAMAIZRAREE®R @ A
referred to above) immediately after the date of commencement of EE2RBH (0 ExX ) 176 - R
dealings of the Company's shares and warrants on the GEM of the BIREERER T T Z2625%8 R

Stock Exchange. B o
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17. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 17. B (%)

Share options (Continued) i IR RE ()
No further option will be granted pursuant to the Pre-IPO BEAMBRESREERAAFEE
Plan. No option under the Pre-IPO Plan had been exercised or AIBEARIEGT BRI - BE_TT—F
cancelled as at 31 March 2001. Due to the departure of =A=1T—H BIEBREREEX
certain employees, options comprising an aggregate of NEEENBRETEETEIE
56,831,623 underlying shares lapsed during the period from 28 iHe RN ETEENREE A-ZF
July 2000 to 31 March 2001: TFE+LAZ TN \BRE_ZT—F=
A=+—RBILHAAR Phkahk
56,831,623 i 0 KO MBI B 5 KA

Number of share options
at an exercise price of
BRIATITREITED
B ERE
HK$0.0379 HK$0.0909 Total
0.03797% 7T 0.09097% 7T &t
At date of grant R H B E 264,503,216 52,012,951 316,516,167
Lapsed during the year 79 %K (43726,358)  (13,105265)  (56,831,623)
At 31 March 200 RZFT—F

=A=+—8 220,776,858 38,907,686 259,684,544

The exercise in full of the outstanding share options under the
Pre-IPO Plan would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 259,684,544 additional ordinary
shares of HK$0.000| each for aggregate proceeds of
HK$ 1 1,904,000 before the related share issue expenses.

On 12 July 2000, the Company approved a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) under which the board
of directors of the Company may, at their discretion, invite any
full-time employee of the Group, including any executive
directors of the Company and any of its subsidiaries, to take up
options to subscribe for shares in the Company in accordance
with the provisions of the Share Option Scheme.

RRBRARNEIR RS - BT
FERAAHEESRBRETSI T HR
TEMBRER  K2EREINET
B% ™ & 0000178 Tt M) & @ AKX
259,684,544% + R B B EITIRG
MHAIXAMNFEREBEBRLE R
[ 1,904,000/ 7T ©

R-ZBZZFELA+ R ARQRTAH
FE—IRRE ARS8 (TR AT &) -
Bt ARREZTGARBERFAE
BEMZBES  BREAQRREN
BRARNANTEFTEABRE - K&
FE R REET S AV IR R AN A Bl R X

,f/'\ ®
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SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Share options (Continued)

Under the Share Option Scheme, the subscription price of the
shares over which the options are granted will be determined
by the directors, but may not be less than the higher of the
closing price of the shares on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
on the date of the grant of the option, or the average closing
price of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the offer; and
the nominal value of the shares. Upon acceptance of the
option, the grantee shall pay HK$ | to the Company by way of
consideration for the grant. The maximum number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme, together with the options so granted under
the Pre-IPO Plan must not exceed 30% of the issued share
capital of the Company, from time to time which have been
duly allotted and issued. The Share Option Scheme became
effective for a period of ten years commencing on the public
listing of the Company’s shares on 28 July 2000. Further details
of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the Company's
prospectus dated on |8 July 2000.

36.com holdings limited

IR A ()
B ()

BEBREE - REABRENR
NREEBHESET  HXERE
T ER RGO RIR L BRE B B
ZREIERARTE - SRR B
EEREBHNAERS B RB AT
MFHUWTE - ARBKROEE (AR
BERE) EEMBIRER - AE
ABSZHIBTFARRNUIEARE
ZRE - REBEBEREFEREAARA
BERBRETER L AEREN T
BITHNRONESEE  THBBA
RAITEDBITRARI0%  MzE
EBRITRAEZ BB RET - BR
B EEARRIRMR =TT F £
B-+\BHEHALtHZBER+ERE
oo BRI EIAE — HEBENA
RANZZEETF LA+ /\HFIEDN
BREEZER -
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17. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 17. BRAS ()
Share options (Continued) i IR RE ()
No option were granted to any directors of the Company RARERHERBEBRET S ER
under the Share Option Scheme. Summary details of the EfIEEAHE - RIZBRETEIRAE
options granted to employees of the Group pursuant to the EESRLBRENFBHMRAT

Share Option Scheme are as follows:

Number of share options

EREHR
Exercise price Granted during Lapsed during At end
Date of grant per share  Expiration date the year the year of year
i A8 BRITEE REmBED FREH FRERH £
HK$
AT
|5 August 2000 0.187 31 December 2005 45,780,000 19,683,333 26,096,667
—ZZETF)\A+AA “ZETRFE+-A=1+—H
|| September 2000 0.168 31 December 2005 940,000 30,000 910,000
—ETTFAAT—H —ETRETZA=+—H
25 October 2000 0.072 31 December 2005 540,000 411,667 128,333
—EEFFTA=-TAA —EERE+_A=+—H
24 November 2000 0.058 31 December 2005 2,490,000 1,566,667 923,333
i 3 iy S —EEAFE+-_A=+—H
20 December 2000 0.058 31 December 2005 120,000 110,000 10,000
—ETEEFF+-A=-1H —EFRFFT-A=1+—H
23 February 200 0.050 31 December 2005 40,000,000 — 40,000,000
—ET-F-A=+=H —EERFE+-A=+—H
28 March 200 0.050 31 December 2005 10,000,000 — 10,000,000
—EE-F=A-+)/\H —EERFT-_A=1T—H
99,870,000 21,801,667 78,068,333
Note: Each of the above options becomes exercisable as to 8.33% of the Mer - EEBREEZEARR ARG MR
number of shares issuable under the options, after each Reference HECHIMAIZRFALESE®R @ A
Date immediately after the date of commencement of dealings of the REZ2RBEBTE  RERBBRE
Company's shares and warrants on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. A T 31T 2 833%M ik 1p - [2 1R H ]
“Reference Date” means each of 3| March, 30 June, 30 September and EEBE=A=+—H -~A=+H"
31 December. The first Reference Date was 30 September 2000. NA=+BR+ZA=+—H - -&f@

2REHAR_ZZETFNAA=TH-
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SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Share options (Continued)

The exercise in full of the outstanding share options under the
Share Option Scheme would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 78,068,333
additional ordinary shares of HK$0.000| each for aggregate
proceeds of HK$7,596,000 before the related share issue
expenses.

Warrants

During the period, warrants were issued by way of bonus issue
to the successful subscribers and placees under the Share
Offer immediately following the allotment and issue of shares
under the Share Offer in the proportion of one warrant for
every offer share. Each warrant entitles the holder thereof to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company of
HK$0.0001 each at a subscription price of HK$0.40 per share,
payable in cash and subject to adjustment, from the date of
issue to 27 July 2002.

During the period, none of the warrants had been exercised.
At the balance sheet date, the Company had 307,000,000
warrants outstanding. The exercise in full of such warrants
would, under the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 307,000,000 additional shares of
HK$0.000| each for aggregate proceeds of HK$ 122,800,000
before the related share issue expenses.

CAPITAL ADVANCES FROM SHAREHOLDERS

The advances from shareholders as at 31 March 2000 were
unsecured and interest-free and owed by CCC to its then
shareholders. On |7 May 2000, the advances were capitalised
and converted into additional share capital of CCC.

36.com holdings limited

IR A ()
B ()

RRANFIRREARAERE - BEIT
FHEREETE TR RITHEAERE
& KEeERBEINETEREE
0.0001%& 7T /) & 1@ A% 78,068,333/% + &
MNBRBAETRMDOMI AT FER
TA 4858 /%7,596,00078 TT °

RRER

HR - ZEBERMBE SR KB
Btk MBRHBEETRINAREA
KA BE A ABETTATRR 5 B 1T R AR
FOAS —REERMNE—MR
RiEE - FMRREBETRHBEARE
A AIHBTHHE_ZTZT_F+ A
Z++H - &8R40 T (A T
BINRBEUNRSREARA SR
H{E0.000 18 T o) L @BAR — A% -

HAN - BEARESETE RNEE
H - &R &) H307,000,00017 2 B% #E 2%
MARTITEE o RBRAN A B30 B A AR AN 28
B WZERREETRETE -
5 B8 §1N 85 77 307,000,0000% & I (B
0.0001 B TTHI AR - RINBR B BT
BROBBAIAOMERELRESR
122,800,000/ TT °

IR E A B

R_EEEF=ZF=+—HEKARRE
MBRAEER - T5T 8 - WHCCC
RNEERNRRE - R_TTZFH
A++tH  SFEREER Wik
A CCCHYBE MR AN o
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19.  RESERVES

Group

At | April 1999

Reserve arising on acquisition

of subsidiaries
Issue of shares
Loss for the year

At 3| March 2000 and
I April 2000

Conversion of shareholders’

advances
Issue of shares
Share issue expenses
Loss for the year

At 31 March 2001

Company

Issue of shares
Share issue expenses

Contributed surplus arising from
acquisition of subsidiaries

Loss for the period

At 31 March 2001

£8

R—ANANEF
MmA—H

Yo B8 S B A R B
IR 2

BITHAD

AEREEE

R-EETE
—A=+—8XK
—TTTH
WA —H
ORI R R

IIM
u

Al
A

BITHAD
BT X
REFZER

A=FE— i
=A=+—8H

A

BITHAD

BT A X

Uit B8 it /B8 1 A B
H IR BB A & R

HI A &5 18

RoTE—4
=g=+-8
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19. f#%
Share Contributed Accumulated
premium surplus losses Total
BRO&EE SAEBER RIAEE &t
(note a)
(PffsEa)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
— — (102) (102)
— 49,829 — 49,829
270 — — 270
— — (17,094) (17,094)
270 49,829 (17,196) 32,903
40,000 — 40,000
110,489 — — 110,489
(15,361) — — (15,361)
— — (78,863) (78,863)
95,398 89,829 (96,059) 89,168
110,759 — — 110,759
(15,361) — — (15,361)
— 59,922 — 59,922
— — (67,400) (67,400)
95,398 59,922 (67,400) 87,920
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19. RESERVES (Continued)

20.

Notes:

@

(b)

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the Reorganisation as set out in note | to the financial
statements, over the nominal value of the Company's shares issued in
exchange therefor.

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the
fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
Group reorganisation, over the nominal value of the Company's shares
issued in exchange therefor. Under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, the Company may make distributions to its members out of
its contributed surplus under certain circumstances.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT

(@)

Reconciliation of loss from operating activities to net
cash outflow from operating activities

Loss from operating activities
Interest income
Depreciation
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Acquisition of software by
finance leases
Increase in accounts
receivable
Decrease/(increase) in other
receivables
(Decrease)/increase in accounts
payable and accruals
(Decrease)/increase in deferred
revenue

Net cash outflow from
operating activities

S WA
e
HERBEEEERR

ABEREWE R
JFE W BR S 38 N

H th fE YRR A
(58 m)

J& 5 3R IR e & 5T 5K TR
CR4) /3%

EFE Wz O 4d) /12

REXBMBA ML FR

20.

36.com holdings limited

& (@)

it

(b)

7N 5 B B0 BN 2 88 B 28 AR 4 B 7 SRR Y
P EA - REAASEHE A F R
BipEEEAR B BIERBREE BHITR
MEEKNZHE -

ARANGABBRD RREBEEHEA
WEMSHHBARBRON AR BESR
ARBBERBEE FITROBERNZ
B-REERE-NAN-FREE A
REEETIER T AERBARB AR
RIEE DK ©

RERETRERMEE

(@)

REXBERELEXBRS

T BENYE
2001 2000
—R¥-F _TETH
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR Fitn
(77,925) (17,068)
(5.419) (364)
5,701 689

1,662 _

— 2,696

(274) (1,001

354 (4,587)

(1,219) 5,204
(1,067) 1,067
(78,187) (13,364)
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20. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 20 MERESHKRERHT (&)
STATEMENT (Continued)

(b) Analysis of changes in financing during the year b) FRARMEEHIMN

Share

capital, share

premium and
contributed  Finance lease Advances from

surplus payables  shareholders
R~ &5
wERBA mEESE RERR
Bt P&+ FE 9 B K
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TETT
At | April 1999 R—ANNFEA—H 315 — —
Inception of finance lease ~ BEHE S LI FH A
contracts — 8,579 —
Cash inflow/(outflow) from REEBIRERA
financing activities, net () F 5 50,000 (2,492) 40,000
At 31 March 2000 and R_EEZE
| April 2000 =A=1+t—HK
R_TEZEZEFMA—H 50,315 6,087 40,000
Inception of finance lease MEHESNMNA
contracts — 4,274 —
Cash inflow/(outflow) from Bt & EESHIE &
financing activities, net WA O ) F 8 95,159 (5,728) —
Conversion into share HAR R AR
capital 40,000 — (40,000)
At 31 March 200 R-FT—F
=H=+—8H 185474 4,633 —
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20. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 20. KERESREXRKET (&)
STATEMENT (Continued)

(c) Major non-cash transactions () EEHRERS

(i)  The reorganisation of the Group in preparation for () REEIRANKRNG ET
the public listing of the Company's shares involved METHAEEEE ¥
the acquisition of certain subsidiaries by the N F B BT AR R R TR
issuance of new shares in the Company as further musiEE FHE AR - 5
explained in notes | and |7 to the financial BERMBEmERMTI &7
statements. E—FEE -

Further details of the Group reorganisaton and the REBESEHNEMEFEIA
principal steps thereof are set out in the paragraph REHANFELTRERNAK
headed “Corporate reorganisation” in the RARZZEZTZTFL AT
Company's prospectus dated |8 July 2000. NBELOBIRERZ[QA]
BHEI-BA-

(i) On 17 May 2000, the advances from shareholders in iy RZEZEZEFAAT L
an aggregate amount of HK$40 million owed by H ' CCCREERRER
CCC to its then shareholders were capitalised and 40,000,000/ JT # IR B8 24 5%
converted into additional share capital of CCC (see ERBARER  WEHB
note |8 to the financial statements). & CCC MRINRA (B2

B SRR MIzE18) °

(i) During the year, the Group entered into finance (i) REERN - NEBFILA
lease arrangements in respect of computer BAERIKENREERER
equipment with capital value at the inception of the o HERKRRHNERE
leases of approximately HK$4,274,000 (2000: ) /R42740008 T (Z2F
HK$5,883,000). In addition, for the year ended 31 T4 : 5,883,000/ 7T) ° Lt
March 2000, computer software of HK$2,696,000 o BE_TTZEF=R
was acquired through finance lease arrangements. =+ - R LFE

2,696,000/ JT A B 14 35 @
MEHRELZHUWEE -

(iv) During the year, the Group had an amount of vy EAFERN  AEEHK
HK$9,030,000 of barter revenue and expenses &2 & B B FE59,030,0008
included in operating activities. TTH LAY 5 W W s R B
i o
21. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 21. ARERE
As at the balance sheet date, the Group and the Company had REEER - NEBRARR G &EEMA

no material contingent liabilities. BRARAEE -
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22. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

23.

At the balance sheet date, the Group has pledged a time
deposit of HK$2,274,000 (2000: HK$2,203,000) to a bank to
secure a letter of guarantee issued by the bank in favour of the

landlord of the Group's office premises.

COMMITMENTS

At the balance sheet date, the Group had the following
commitments:

(@)

(b)

(©)

Commitments under operating leases

Annual commitments under non-cancellable operating
leases to make payments in the following year were as
follows:

Land and buildings expiring MRE_FEZFRHF :

In the second to fifth (BREEMSF) Em
years, inclusive 2 REF

Other commitments

The Group had consultancy fees of HK$450,000 (2000:
HK$1,800,000)
consultancy agreement which will expire on 30 June
2001,

payable under a non-cancellable

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material
capital and financial commitments.

The Company did not have any significant commitments at the

balance sheet date.

22.

23.

770 >

Bt 3 ¥R R MY R

31 March 2001
TE-F=/A=+—H
EEHEE
REEH  AEBEESBSEHE
22740008 T (ZBEE T F
22030008 L) E R FiR1T - EAR
TRAEBERAETHEETEHERE
R F G o
AYE

REER » REBBATARE

() REFHERIE

0 T4 A 2 TR AT BN A
AEABMT -

Group

%8
2001 600
—e®-F _FTTEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER T
3,398 .

(b) HfhAEIE

BER=_TET—FA=1H
Emz T EBEEBBZE - &
& B fE 4500008 T (ZEEE
& 1,800,000/ L) BRI & o

() BREMBLEEEIN  NEBHE
o] B K & 2 0 B 75 A HE o

o

Vi NN

el

R A& B 8 o] B KR
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24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 24 BREAEXXRS
The Group had the following transactions with related parties RAERERN  AEEEFHEANTE
during the year: TTIRS
2001 2000
—gT-5 -—TTEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5% THERT THET

Continuing transactions: RERS :

Purchases of fixed assets BEETEE (i) 393 5282
Advertising income & & WA 0) — 1,614

Discontinued transactions: BERIERS -

Consultancy fees BAfE & (ii) 792 I'14

Notes: M5

()  The advertising income and the purchases of fixed assets were () BEWAMBEEEEERE 7
received from/paid to iIASPEC Technologies (H.K.) Limited (*iASPEC"), IASPEC Technologies (H.K.) Limited
in which Tsang Moses Kwok Tai, the then non-executive director of the (MASPEC]) » RAFIZIFAITTEE G H
Company, had a 12% beneficial equity interest. Tsang Moses Kwok Tai is FRAEZRAIZNE=KRE - B4k
also a director of the holding company of iIASPEC. These transactions Th7% IASPEC ZHERAFIESE - ZER
were made according to the published prices and conditions offered SHRBR,/ AAEEEXERSE HE
to/by the major customers/suppliers of the Group. RRAH B RIGRMHET -

(i)  The consultancy fees were paid to a company controlled by Cheng (i) BR—EBHEARAEZFHBLEHEG 2D
Albert Jinghan, an executive director of the Company, in respect of the AIXNERE  ERARNEERIEZA
provision of advice on the content, editing and serving of a variety of DR ER  URFEENEERZEEA
information on the Group’'s Web-sites. The transactions were ZER  ZERGIERASERBEH
determined at a rate agreed between the Group and Cheng Albert EEEFTRBZWBEMEK - EARAA
Jinghan. After the listing of the Company on the GEM of the Stock RZZEZZTF+L A+ /\BEBRFE
Exchange on 28 July 2000, these transaction were discontinued. ¥R EM®E  HERXHERI -

In addition to the above related party transactions, during the Fr EILBREA LR BN - RAFE

year, Cheng Albert Jinghan provided personal guarantees and N BEBMEEER AR ERERZ #

indemnities to the lessor for the finance lease facilities granted EMERAEREEARK—REA

to the Group. Such personal guarantees and indemnities were ERRBIERE - SRR RBER

released and replaced by the Company subsequent to its listing BEARFAR_FTEEFLAZTN

on the GEM on 28 July 2000. HLEMm&EB&MEE - WHARQ AT
(i

In the opinion of the directors, the above transactions were EFRR LR TIRNAEEN —

carried out in the ordinary course of business of the Group. R EEPHETT
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25.

SUBSIDIARIES

Name

=1

iFocus Group Limited®

Cyber Communications
Corporation Ltd.

Cybercom Marketing
Limited (formerly Plug
In Technology Limited)

Cybercom Marketing
Limited (AT 7 Plug In
Technology Limited)

Topspin Associates Limited

Dymo Group Limited

Home Page Technology
Limited

Cyber Station Limited

Place of
incorporation
and operations

& il AL B

EEM R

British Virgin Islands@
RERXE S

British Virgin Islands@
REBRELEEC

British Virgin Islands@
KBRS

British Virgin Islands@
RERXE S

British Virgin Islands@
53 T Y

British Virgin Islands@
REBRELEEC

Hong Kong
BB

25.

Nominal value of
issued ordinary
share capital

B 81T
ERRKRAEE

US$ |
=Sy

US$12,960
12,9603 7T

US$8,000
8,000 JT

US$50,000
50,0003 7T

US$9,000
9,000% 7T

US$ |
=Sy

HK$2
2B T

B & 2 F
Percentage
of equity

attributable to
the Company
KA EEAG
RA&#E
Aot

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities

TEER

Investment holding

REEK

Vertical portal
operator
AL PN EE

s
R

Media sales arm
R E 21

Operation of
Hong Kong portal

e YN SEENS

China/ED editorial
office

F B, ED
mERHER

Operation of
furniture portal

AE & R AP 4R

Operation of

news portal

S PN EEN
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SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation

Name and operations
& il AL B
=r EEM R
e.Cyber Creation Limited Hong Kong
E=RaZERAR BB
Worldwide Net Limited Hong Kong
REARRA] B
Century e-Commerce Hong Kong
Limited A
HAEEERRQA
Easy Cyber Limited Hong Kong
AIBBR AR B
i.Trading Limited Hong Kong
BB
Netlink Limited Hong Kong
WEARRA HE
Cyber Asia Holdings Hong Kong
Limited s

BREEERQA

Standard e-Commerce Hong Kong
Limited s

25.

Nominal value of
issued ordinary
share capital

B 81T
ERRKRAEE

HKS$2
2B T

HK$2
28 TT

HK$500,000
500,0007% 7T

HK$2
28 TT

HK$2
2B T

HK$2
28T

HKS$2
28 TT

HK$2
2B T

Bt 8 A B (48)

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company
DB AL
IR 7S 1 55
Ba

00%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

36.com holdings limited

Principal activities

TEER

Operation of
entertainment
portal

R IR EE A PTR Uk

Operation of

teenager channel
REFLF AR
78k

I

|

Operation of

finance portal
BB APTHh

Operation of
eating portal

RERRAPIBL

Operation of

sports portal
LB APIRY

Operation of

horse-racing portal

RERF APIRY

Operation of
consumer portal

REHEAPIRY

Operation of fortune

telling portal
SN RN FEN



36.com holdings limited

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name

=1

Pacific Coast Limited
EXRERAA

Communication Logistics
Limited

Cyber Services Limited
—RBEERERAT

36.com (Canada)
Limited

i-Digital Technology

Limited

Quantitative Technology
Limited

eBusiness Enterprise Inc.

Goal Logistics Limited

Multi Network Technology
Limited

Place of
incorporation
and operations

AR K
EEM R

Hong Kong
BB
British Virgin Islands@

ey P LY

Hong Kong
BB

Canada
mER

British Virgin Islands@
REBRELEEC

British Virgin Islands®
5 T Y

British Virgin Islands
REBRELES

British Virgin Islands
REBRELES

British Virgin Islands
RBRELES

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2001
EE—F=A=+—H

25. M2 7 (8

Percentage
Nominal value of of equity
issued ordinary attributable to

share capital the Company

RPDEEAL
21T % 2 7 2=
TER R ATEE B
HK$2 100%
2B TT
USS$ | 100%
=
HK$2 100%
28T
HKS | 100%
|78 7T
US$ | 100%
(E
USS$ | 100%
=
USS$ | 100%
(Ew
USS$ | 100%
(Ew
USS$ | 100%
E

Principal activities

TEER

Software
applications

IR

E-card services

BT EFRY

Chinese name
holding company
T

R A

Operation of
west Canada
portal

R INE KT ER
AP 48k

Registered
user services

B AP R%

Operation of
women’s portal

R w22 A PTuh

Dormant

EEEE L

Dormant

EEEE L

Dormant

R



25.

26.

27.

31 March 2001

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 35 3R R B =

—FF-F=A=+—H

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name

=1

Data Model Technology
Limited

Innovate Com Technology
Limited

— Directly held by the Company

@— Except for companies which were dormant during the year, the principal

Place of
incorporation
and operations

AR K
EEM R

British Virgin Islands
REBRELES

British Virgin Islands
REBRELES

place of operations of these entities is Hong Kong.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

25.

Nominal value of
issued ordinary
share capital

=5 &6)

ERRKRAEE

US$ |
=Sy

US$ |
=Sy

[ —

@ —

26.

Subsequent to the year end, on 4 April 2001, the Company

established a wholly-owned subsidiary which is principally

engaged in the publishing business in Hong Kong. A weekly

magazine named ‘CUP’ was launched on |6 May 2001.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27.

The financial statements were approved by the board of

directors on 26 June 2001.

36.com holdings limited

Bt 8 A B (48)

Percentage
of equity
attributable to

the Company  Principal activities

R T EL

% 7 B &
Bokk EEHXWK
[00% Dormant
4 2 7S
[00%  Dormant
4 2 7S

HMARREERAE

BRENGEEBHARIN  WERRNEE S

BN ES
RERRBH

EFHERE  ARBAIR_EE—F
MA—BRZ—H2EMNBAR - X

BEEBNFERER R_TFT—
FRA+TRA  —ARBREHINE
FIEAmEE -
R B 3 | R

S a), Sl
BB B R 2K o

T—F A=+ /"H



36.com holdings limited

Progress Against Business Obijectives

XBERERER |

Business objectives as stated in the
prospectus dated |8 July 2000 for the
year ended 3| March 2001
R-ZZEZFLATNBHHNER
ERAAEBE_SE-F=/A=1+

Actual business progress

—ALEFENXBKAEE EREEERER
Hong Kong
i

I. Launch Chinese and English language
e-card with WhyNot
HEH B WhyNot & ERIR R X E T
BN

The Company launched its e-card portal at the end of September
2000, which consists of about 550 Chinese and 300 English e-cards.
ARRER_ZEZTFNARELESFERAMBEY B
550Kk P X EFERNI0REXEFER °

2. Launch Women'’s portal through
partnership with Leung Anita Fung Yee

HREFENABT AL R LA
78k

The Company launched the Mainland Chinese version of Women's
portal through partnership with Leung Anita Fung Yee on |
September 2000. The site is accessible from Hong Kong.
ARARER_ZEZEZFAA-HERBENEBTAHRFE L
APTR UL P Bl KPERR - WU BB BEN ©

3. Launch intermediary services on the
Consumer portal

FEORE AP A LN RS

The Company launched an online shopping mall in July 2000. It
currently has 350 merchants in 20 different product categories.
ARFER-_FTTFLAHEL —R®LEBEYH L REEE350
EEFLE20ETRERNER °

4. Launch English version of Finance
portal

HE 28 SRR B AR AP 48

The English version of Finance portal was launched at the end of July
2000.
R_TZEZF AR AR AH L EChRE & APIAIL -

5. Launch IBM's portal

e IBMA FI 48 34

In the later half of September 2000, the Company completed an
online loyalty portal for IBM.

R-ZEZEZFNATH  ARFETKS IBM B A EEH
UNEE

6. Launch the Group’s first e-tailing
vertical portal through partnership
with third parties
HEZFUNARELARLAKZEE
EEFZEH M APTE UL

The Company launched an online shopping mall in July 2000. It
currently has 350 merchants in 20 different product categories.

ARAREN_ZZTTFLAKL B LEBEYHL - REEH350
EEFLE20B T TRAERNER °




Progress Against Business Obijectives

4 4 84 %ﬁ B E%& ?E*EDE 36.com holdings limited

Business objectives as stated in the
prospectus dated 18 July 2000 for the
year ended 3| March 2001
R-ZZZEFLATNBHENER
ERAMMABE-_ZTZE-—F=A=+ Actual business progress

—HLEFENREER ERERERER
7. Continue marketing program * The Company has been carrying out marketing campaign to

HETD GRS

promote 36.com, including advertising on television, radio, newspapen,
magazines, and the Mass Transit Railway.
ARRIEHITHMSHEENS  BREER 6  BE - M
Mt TERETESEE - UHEE36com e

8. Improve the look and feel of the
Group’s vertical portals to make them
more user-friendly and attractive
BE RSB AR AFIB U ERE R
B FHESSGRERLEAR
511

Since its launch on 6 March 2000, the Group has undertaken several
rounds of improvement in the look and feel of its vertical portals.
B-ZETF=-ARNBHEHNUR  AEBEEZRBCGEB TH R
INBEEVTEEPSE

9. Develop distribution of the Group's
Chinese language vertical
portals/content through other third
parties network
BBE-EFNBROBAEEND
XHEM AP LA B

The Group generates revenue from distribution of its content to
Internet and other media providers, including PCCW and MTRC.

AEEREEBMNERALEAMERHEER EREABNR
ME AR D EEARTRILA -

Mainland

o K BE

|. Launch Chinese and English e-card
portal with WhyNot
HEH B WhyNot AR P R EF
BRAPIA

The Company's e-card portal, with 550 Chinese and 300 English
e-cards, is accessible from Mainland China.
ARBNEFERAFIFEEBIE550KRF XEFE K M3005K K
XNEFER AJERBEKREEA -

2. Launch Women's portal through
partnership with Leung Anita Fung Yee

B2 B LA A B m L AP
ER

The Company launched the Mainland Chinese version of Women'’s
portal through partnership with Leung Anita Fung Yee on |
September 2000. The site is currently updated on an ad hoc basis.
ARREN_ZEZEZEFNA-BERBEAABTIARLEL
AP #8 uk ) o B K BE iR - 5% 49wt 3R B DA R B 0 = SR

3. Launch localized Consumer portal

e A E B A PTR Uk

The Mainland Chinese version of the Group’s Consumer portal was
launched in November 2000.The site is currently updated on an ad
hoc basis.

AEBHEAFBUENPBERERAER _-_ZZTF+— A
o AR IR B DABR B 5 R o




Progress Against Business Obijectives

XBERERER |l

36.com holdings limited

Business objectives as stated in the
prospectus dated 18 July 2000 for the
year ended 3| March 2001
R-ZZEZFLATNBHHNER
ERRNAEBE_ST-—F=/A=1+
—HLEFENXBBER

Actual business progress

4. Launch the Group's first e-tailing * The Company has no current plan to launch an e-tailing portal in

vertical portal through partnership
with third parties
HE-FZNABTVAREAEES
BEFZEMR AP

Mainland China. The company is currently focusing on its home
market in light of the drastic changes in market conditions.
ARAREEFENTERERLEFTEAFIBL - ARTHR
P ARARBAMAERERMTS -

5. Launch aggressive marketing campaign

HHBENTISHERELD

The Group has carried out local marketing campaign to promote the
Women's and Entertainment portals.
AEBERPBEAEETMSERLTS  WHEBRLXRREA
PR8I o

6. Develop distribution of the Group’s
Chinese language vertical
portals/content through other third
parties networks
BBRE—ENBEEAEENF
Xt AP B, AR

The Company has no current plan to distribute content through
third parties in Mainland China. The company is currently focusing on
its home market in light of the drastic changes in market conditions.

ARAREEFEEBUNTEAENE=FBELEARET - B
RTREE KRR BRMREHERMHE ©

North America

1t =M

I. Launch Chinese and English language
e-card with WhyNot
HEH B WhyNot AR P R EF
B R APk

The Company’s e-card portal, with 550 Chinese and 300 English e-
cards, is accessible from North America.
ARANEFBERAPIBU RFESS0RP XEFE R R3005KHE
XEFER  AJEILEEZEA-

2. Launch Women'’s portal through
partnership with Leung Anita Fung Yee

B2 2 B {5 DA & B T 33 R L AP
ER

The Company launched the Mainland Chinese version of Women's
portal through partnership with Leung Anita Fung Yee on |
September 2000. The site is accessible from North America.
ARAER_ZEZTFNA-HERBBUGRBEARLREKL
AP R R B ARER - @ubr B EA -




XBEEERER

Progress Against Business Obijectives

36.com holdings limited

Business objectives as stated in the
prospectus dated |8 July 2000 for the
year ended 31 March 2001
R-ZZZTFLATN\BTHBENER
ERRNAEBE_ST-F=/A=+
—BLEFENXBRR

Actual business progress

3. Launch localized News, Finance and
Consumer vertical portals targeted at
the Chinese community in North
America
HHRIEEREALBRETEHRDY
R FE - B SO B AR AP
A8k

* The Company has no current plan to develop localized content for
North America. The company is currently focusing on its home
market in light of the drastic changes in market conditions.

s RAREEABELEZZERAMEAR - BARTRFE - AQ
AIBAT R ERERMTE ©

4. Develop distribution of the Group’s
Chinese language vertical
portals/content through other third
parties networks
BBRE—ENBEEAEENF
XM AP B, AR

* The Company has no current plan to distribute content through
third parties in North America. The company is currently focusing on
its home market in light of the drastic changes in market conditions.

s ARBEEAEBBILEEINE=FNEARNT -HXTRLE
AAR BRI REFREARMTE
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Chairman
Ip Saimond

Executive Directors
Cheng Albert Jinghan
Yeung Kwok Mung

Non-executive Directors
Poon Kai Tik
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Chung Wai Yang

Independent non-executive Directors
Wong Richard Yue Chim
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Registered office
Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue
Hamilton HM12
Bermuda

Head office and principal place of business
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C220, Kai Tak Government Building
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Kowloon

Hong Kong

Website address
www.36.com

Resident Representative
AS&K Services Limited

Assistant Secretary
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Compliance Officer
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Qualified Accountant
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